| i

OOOOOOOOOOOOOO

RPS GROUP PLC
Report and Accounts 2012

- N r
\_ J L J W,
/~ 4 N )




Introduction
Key Performance Indicators 2 Corporate Governance 2
Operating Highlights 2 Remuneraton Report 26
Strategy and Business Model 3 Report of the Auditors 33
Group Structure 3
Accounts
Business Review Consolidated Income Staterment 35
2012 Results 5 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 35
Risk Management 8 Consolidated Balance Sheet 36
Employees 10 Consoltdated Cash Flow Statement 37
Corporate Responsibility 12 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity i8
Notes to the Consolidated Financiai Statements 39
Management & Governance Parent Company Balance Sheet 72
The Board 15 Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements 73
Report of the Directors 16 Five Year Summary 80
Key Performance Indicators 2012 2011
Fee income (£m) 478 8 4527
PBTA( (£m) 60 | 508
Converston of profit to cash (%)@ 105 13
Adjusted operating cash flow™ (£m) 760 711
Statutory reporting 2012 2011
Revenue (£m) 5559 5287
Profit before tax {£€m) 402 405
Operating Highlights
m diversity of activity and geography enabled the Group to produce results at the top end
of market expectations,
m all 3 reported segments increased profit contnbution and margin,
m balance sheet remains strong with year end net bank borrowings at £135m (2011 £23 5m) having
nvested £24 2m in acquisitions dunng 2012,
m bank facilities of £125m available until July 2016,
® proposed full year dividend increased by 15%. |9th consecutive annual increase of this scale

Naotes

(1) PBTA 1s profit before rax, amortisaton of acquired sntangibles and transaction related costs as defined i note |

{2) Based on operatng profit adjusted for depreciation share scheme casts amorusation of acquired intangibles, deferred consideration treated as
remuneration and non-cash transaction relared costs

{3} Operaung cash flow prior to deferred considerauon treated as remuneration

{4) The Directors review performance using non-statutory measures such as those above and segment profit and underlying profit as they consider these
to be more meaningful measures of performance These performance measures are defined 1 note 1{g) Note 3 includes a ‘Group Reconciliation” of the
adjusted measures to the statutory results
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Introduction

Strategy and Business Model

RPS 15 an ntemational consultancy prowding independent advice upon
@ the explorauon and production of ol and gas and other natural resources, and
® the development and management of the built and natural environment

We prowide a wide range of services for our clients and accordingly operate in a large number of markets both functionally and
intemationally The long term drnvers of our business are

|8 the world's need to secure adequate supplies of energy and other natural resources from environmentally acceptable sources
| the commercial advantage resulting from the sustanable development of land and bulldings

B the need to provide adequate infrastructure such as arports power stations, public transport, water treatment plants

m the need to manage environmental health and safety risks

Qur strategy, which 15 determined and monitored by the Board 15 to operate in those markets that exhibit these drvers have sound
longer-term prospects and where we can potentially achieve teading posiions Each year the Board sets a senes of pnontes consistent
with that strategy and reviews progress against I1ts strategy and prionties on a regular basis Within that context we seek to improve
continuously the range and quality of the services we offer our clients and where we can best can add value to therr activiies We are
airming to buitd mutti-disciplinary businesses in North Amenca and Austraha as we have in Europe as well as bulding a presence in the
developing world through oil gas and mineral exploration and production projects

The development of our business In this way I1s iImportant in attracting and retaining high quality employees This 15 achieved by
providing oppertunities for professional growth and advancement as well as by providing competitive remuneration and benefits
packages and stnving to mantain an open creative and positive culture

Client retention and the maintenance of longstanding relationships with our clents are at the heart of our success VWe achieve this by
seeking to delver focussed and cost-effective advice on both well understood problems and emerging challenges We also maintain an
mternational reputation for meeting the challenges posed by large complex projects and problems and conducting business in an open
and respensible manner

The increasing diversity and geographical spread of our businesses requires us to continuously monitor and seek to improve the
operational efficiency of our businesses This entalls consideration of management organisation controls, processes systems and
support services

Acquisitions have played an important part in our growth in the past and will continue to be a key part of our strategy We acquire
businesses that are well managed deliver sound results and have good reputations in thew markets They may be in sectors where we
are already operating or offer services that are closely related to our own We already have we!l established and strong businesses in a
number of countnes, which provide a platform for acquisitive growth there We are seeking to acquire high guality businesses in North
Amenica, Australia and Europe that either add depth to or complement the services we offer chents in those countnes The Board wali
consider larger acquisitions as well as acquisiions In countnes in which we do not currently operate that are consistent with overall
strategy and provide aur international clients with greater local support

The markets in which we operate are fast moving and so our strategy also needs to be sufficently flexble to ensure that we can
respond quickly to changing conditions The Key Performance Indicators the Group employs are monitored monthly and prowide the
means by which the Board measures the success of its strategy

Group Structure

The Group consists of two prmary reporting segments Energy and Built & Natural Environment the latter being split into two
geographic sub-segments covenng Europe and Australia Asia Pacific

Energy

This 15 a global, mult-disaplinary consultancy, providing integrated technical, commercial and project management support and training
In the fields of geascience, engineenng, health, safety and environment to the energy sector Our am is to help chents develop

their energy resources across the complete life cycle, combining cur technical and commercial skills with an extensive knowledge of
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environmental and safety 1ssues The business has regional offices in UK, North Amenca, Austraha and Asia and undertakes projects in
many other countries The segment 1s managed by a single dwisional Board to which subsidiary operating Boards, with responsibility for
UK North Amenca and Austraha Asia Pacific, report

Built and Natural Environment

This 1s a leading multi-disciplinary consultancy providing a wide but related range of advisory services on all aspects of the buit and
ratural environment. Bullt Environment activitres, provided from offices throughout the UK and lrefand the Netherlands, as well from
offices pnmanty on the East and West Coasts of Australia, include planning, urban desrgn and regeneration, enwvironmental assessment
and managerment, transport and infrastructure, architecture and landscape, engineenng and surveying Natural Environmental based
services in the UK and The Netherlands include environmental science, the management of water resources, health safety and

nsk management, laboratory testing asbestos consulting, air quality and noise and property senaces whilst in Australia we provide
oceanographic and mining services. The businesses in Europe are managed by a single regional Board Our businesses in the Australia
Asia Paafic region are similarly managed by a single regional Board whilst both are supported by a number of subsidiary eperating Boards

Further Information
A sample of the projects and activities that we undertake s descrnibed on our website at www rpsgroup com
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Business Review

2012 Results

Results

PBTA was at the top end of market expectations at £60 | milkon (2011 £508 milion) Adjusted basic earrungs per share were 1948
pence (20! 1 1668 pence) The contnbution of each segment grew significantly:

Undedying Profa®

(£m} 112 2011

Energy 397 321 +24%
Built and Natural Ervironment 318 290 +10%
Total ' 716 6l | +17%
* as defined in note | (f) o the C: tdared Financial

Our Energy actvities are largely conducted on a worldwide basis In combination with our Built and Natural Environment business in
Awstralia Asia Pacific, we now have over 70% of our underlying profit generated cutside Europe Dunng 2012 this generally exposed
us to higher growth economies and good opportunities A significant proportion of our Built and Natural Environment actmty relates
to projects providing the infrastructure necessary to process and deliver energy and power resources Consequently, we estimate that
approximately 70% of our underlying profit 1s now earmed in the global Energy ‘and associated infrastructure markets

Cash Fow, Funding and Dividend

The Group continued 1ts excellent conversion of profit inta cash Adjusted operating cash flow was £760million 2011 £71 | million)
Our balance sheet remains strong, with no defined benefit pension schemes or histonc pension liabiliies. We have bank facilites of £125
mithon avalable untd July 2016 These compnse a £75 millon commutted facility, with an additional £50 miilon availlable as required The
cost of these faciliies remains at a low fevel Net bank borrowangs at the year end were £135 milhion (2011 £23 5 million), after investing
£242 millon in acquistions (2014 £27 2 milhon) We reman well positioned to continue to fund the Group's growth strategy

The Board continues to be confident about the Group's financal strength and 15 recommending a final dwvidend of 3 34 pence per
share payable on 24 May 2013 to shareholders on the register on 12 Apnl 2013 If approved the total dividend for the full year would
be 640 pence per share, an increase of 15% (2011 556 pence per share) Our dividend has nsen at about this rate for 19
consecutive years It increased 75% over the 4 years of the global financial cnsis whilst our net debt has reduced substantially,

to an 8 year low, after investing £1206 millon in acqussitions n the same penod

Markets and Trading

Energy

We provide internationally recognised cansultancy services to the energy sector from bases in the UK USA Canada Awustraha and
Asia These act as regional centres for projects undertaken in many other countnes The 2012 results show the significant growth
anticipated, with a strong margin

2012 011
Fee income (£m's) 2259 186 |
| Undering profit* {{m's) 387 321
Margin (%) 176 172

* 25 defined In note |(z) o the Consolidated Financal § ..

As antiapated, this business continued to make good progress in the final months of the year Qur clients’ investment in conventional
oil and gas exploration and production was generally strong throughout the year Qur activity 1n the unconventionals market remained
buoyant internationally, with a shift from shale gas to liquids in the USA We expenenced an encouraging uphft in activity in most parts
of the world and continued to see a particularly strong performance in the US This was based on both domestic and international
projects including good actvity levels in the Gulf of Mexico Following last years political disturbances, our actvty n North Afnca was
subdued throughowt 2012, although opportunities elsewhere in Afnca and parts of the Middle East continued to improve
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Our training and oceanographic businesses performed well and our reputation as independent advisors to the financial services market
in respect of transactions and asset valuations continued to grow The acquisiwon of PEICE, announced on 16 January 2013, accelerates
the development of our training business, particulady in Canada

Gooed margins have been maintaned With global E&P capital expenditure forecast to grow in 2013 1t seems likely that the positive
trends in this business will continue

Built and Natural Environment (BNE)

Within these businesses we provide a wide range of consultancy services to many aspects of the property and infrastructure
development and management sectors These include environmental assessment, the management of water resources health and
safety, nsk management, town and country planning, building, fandscape and urban design, surveying and transport planning Profit in
the year mproved, as did the margin

2012 2001
Fee income (£m's) 2553 2691
Underlying profit* (£m's) 318 250
Margin (%) 125 108
* as defined n note I{g) to the Comnolidated Financial &
BNE"- Europe
2012 201
Fee income (£m's) 1572 1782
Underlying profit* (£m's) 189 180
Margin (%) 120 101
* as defined in nota |(g) to the Consolidaced Financial S I

Qur BNE business in Europe increased 1ts contabution compared with the same pened last year, despite markets remaining uncertain
In this business we provide support to our chients’ operations in the water, health and safety and nsk management sectors, in order to
enable them to comply with legislation and regulation We continued to see reascnable levels of activity in these markets although a
number of sigmficant projects for UK water clients came to an end around the middle of the year Both our Insh and Dutch businesses
also performed well despite being exposed directly to the economic uncertainty of the eurozone We concluded the sale of our insh
facilities management business In March This accounts for most of the year on year reduction in fee income

Many of our tradiional commercial development clients became more cautious about Investing in new capital projects dunng the second
half We have, therefore, been even more selective about the market sectors in which we invest and have n particular, focussed on
providing further support to those clents developing energy infrastructure, such as on and off shore windfarms pipelines and interconnectors
power stations and waste to energy plants Investment potential is greater in this market, recent UK Government statements about energy
production from gas were encouraging

It currently seems that market conditions are unlikely to improve in 2013, so we continue to focus upon eficency Improvements to maintan
our performance

BNE Austraha Asia Pacific

2002 200 !
Fee income {£m’s) 983 910
Undedying profit* (£m's) 130 11O
Margin (%) 132 121
* as defined in note 1(g) o the Consolidated Financal 5 3

Our BNE business in Australia Asia Paarfic produced significantly better results than in 2011 In the first part of the year we continued
to benefit from the high levels of investment in the actvities and associated infrastructure necessary to deliver miming, coal seam

gas and associated LNG projects in Queensland and the conventional gas projects offshore Westemn Australia. These provide the
oppertunty for us to deliver a wide range of services to clents
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Business Review

There was however, a change In client sentiment in the secend half of the year in these markets This resulted from a combmnation

of lower levels of Asian demand for certan natural resources, heightened concerns over escalaung project costs and a tnmming of
growth in the Australian economy We are taking steps to improve the efficiency of this business, enabling us to remain well positioned
in sectors which may increase activity again dunng 2013 and which have excellent medium and long term prospects

Outside the natura resources sector the Australian economy remained under pressure, as global econom:ic concerns reduced
consumer and business confidence As a result conditions In the commercial development market remaned subdued The acquisition
of Manidis Roberts, completed in July, significantly strengthens our business in New South Wates, as well as increasing our penetration
into parts of Australian public sector infrastructure market including water, transport and power supply The mtegration of this business
1s progressing well, although the run up to the recently called national election in September is Iikely to cause uncertanty in its markets

Subject to global economic progress continuing, conditions in some of our markets should mprove dunng the course of 2013, enabling
us to benefit from our strong profile

Group Strategy and Prospects

RPS remains well posiioned in markets of long term importance to the global economy Our focus on Energy and energy
infrastructure markets provides the Group with an excellent underpin to its prospects We continue to beheve that our strategy

of bullding multi-disaiphnary businesses in each of the regions in which we operate 15 attractive and achievable We will, therefore,
continue to develop our business organically, whilst seeking further acquistion opportunibes Our balance sheet is strong and supports
this strategy

We have come through the exceptionally challenging circumstances of the last four years in a strong position We were able to deliver
good growth n 2012, which takes us above our previous high, achieved in 2008 Although the outlook in some of our markets 1s still
uncertan we remasn on track to produce further growth in 2013, anticipating this 15 kely 1o be more marked in the second half

rpsgroup.com




Risk Management

The Group supplies a wide range of services in many markets and countnes This gives rse to a range of nsks that are recognised

assessed and effectively ranaged The Group's system of planning, budgeting and performance review assists with the identification .
and management of nsk, The management of these nsks is not separated from the business, but 15 treated as an integral part of our

culture and the way we operate Each of our businesses 1s expected to identify and take appropnate steps to mitigate nsks associated

with #s operations The Executive Commuittee oversees the management of nisk to which the Group 15 exposed and reports those of

a materal nature to the Board together with recommendations for their mitigation The principal nsks to which the Group 1s currently

exposed and 15 hkely to be exposed in the future are cutlined below

Economic Environment

Continuing economic uncertainty may cause the Group's clients to cancel postpone or reduce existing or future projects Continuing
projects may be subject to greater ¢ost pressures The consequence 1s that we couid have stafl levels that exceed current workload
and therefore incur the cost of un-productive tme

Although market factors are beyond our control, our exposure to a wide range of markets across the world mitigates the impact of
downturn n any single market Qur contractual order book 1s monitared regularly in comparison to the producuve capacity of our
fee eaming staff Changing economic conditions in our various markets are closely monitored in order that pre-emptive action can

as far as possible, be taken The risks associated with the Eurozone crisis are Iimited to the extent that only the Group's businesses in
The Netherlands and Republic of Ireland are located within Eurozone and trade through its currency The wider global downturn that
right be tnggered by a detenoration in the position are beyond the Group's direct control but may be mitigated to a degree by the
factors fisted above

Material Adverse Events

Adverse occurrences may impact our ability to deliver our services and our chents’ demand for them These are most likely to be
of an environmentat nature such as the catastrophic flooding that adversely affected both our own and our clients operations in
Queensland 1In 201 | and the Macondo ol spill In 2010 that led to a moratanum on deep water dnilling in the Gulf of Mexico

Events of this type are impossible to predict but the range of countnes within which we operate and markets we serve limits the
impact upon the Group as a whole No new events of this type and scale affected us dunng the year

A lengthy failure or discontinuity in our | T systems could also have a significant impact upon our operations

The Group's [T systems are centrally managed with certan specific functions carned out locally An annual Group plan 1s produced
which includes measures designed to ensure reliability and resilence of the Group s systems as well as appropnate catastrophe
planning The Group has operations in a large number of locations, which would enhance its abiity to withstand any individual failure
or malfuncion The Groug has never expenenced a significant fallure or discontinuity of this type

Recruitment and Retention of Key Persennel

The Group's services are performed by weli-qualified and professional employees with expertise across a wide range of areas A
fallure to recruit and retan employees of appropnate calibre will, accordingly, impact our ability to meet our chents’ requirements and
correspondingly to maintain and grow our business

As descnbed on pages |0 and |1 the Group mantains approprate remunerat:on and Incentive structures which are reviewed on a
regular basis and maintains an environment that 13 supportive of professional development through traning and career opporturuty

Market Position and Reputation
The Groups reputation for project delvery reties upon its public portrayal and the perception of existing and prospective chents
A major falure of project management or delivery could, accordingly, mpact our ability to win future work.

The Group operates a range of approprate management and quality control systems, many of which are extemnally accredited and are
designed to enable our employees to provide a consistently high standard of work.

Compliance and Litigation

A falure to dehiver our services In accordance with our contractual obligatiors may lead to a nsk of the Group becoming involved in
Iitigation {n addition, as the contracting environment has evolved, chents in some of cur businesses have sought to transfer certain risks
10 the consultants it employs

The internat review processes operated by the Group seek to ensure that contractual rsks are properly scrutinised and mitigated as far
as possibie whilst the management and quality control systems highlighted above mimnimise the nsk of shertfalls in performance
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Business Review

that may give nse to itigation Appropnate professional indemnity insurance s also mamtained in addition to a normal range of other
commercial Insurance covers

From time to tirme the Group receves claims from clients and suppliers Some of these result in payments to the clamants by the Group
and its insurers The Board reviews all significant claims at each board meeting and the Board 15 currently satisfied that the Group has
sufficient provisions in its bafance sheet to meet all urinsured hiabilities, ncluding those which have ansen for the first time in 2012

The Group Is subject to a range of taxation and legal requirements A fallure to comply with these obligations could give nse to legal
lability, financial loss and reputational damage

The Group has in place appropnate internal controls to deal with such matters and employs appropnately qualified employees through
whom 1t monitors and responds to the regulatory requirements of the countnes in which it operates

Business Acquisitions
As in the past the Group tntends to develop and grow the business, in part, by making acquisitions A falure to identify acquired
liabilties or to integrate acquired businesses could have an adverse impact on the Group s performance and prospects

Detalled due diligence 1s perfarmed on all potential acquisitions drawing upon both intemal and external resources This will include an
assessment of the ability to integrate the acquired business within the Group When a business 15 acquired detailed integration plans
are developed and monitored to ensure successful Integration inte the Group and its control framework The integration of Manidis
Roberts has been succesful thus far

Funding

The avalability of sufficient and appropriate funding through the Group's bank facilities 15 important to support the Group's growth and
in particular to fund acquisitions

The Group's facilities which were due to expire n 2013 were renewed during 2012 The Group now has in place a revolving credit
facility with Lioyds Bank for £75m, together with an additional £50m in the form of an accerdion faaility that 1s avalable upon request
by the Group, subject to credit approval being given by the bank. This new facility will expire in July 2016

Health and Safety
The Group's activiies require the monitoring and management of the health and safety of its employees as well as to sub-contractors,
chent personnel and the general public A falure to manage this risk could expose the Group to significant potential labilities as well as
damage to reputation

Detailed health and safety policies and procedures are in place to minimise such nisk. The Group’s approach to the management of
health and safety 1s described on page 12
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Employees

The current profile of the Group's employees and the changes over the fast year are as detalled below

Group 012 2004
Average number of employees

Energy* gi2 722
Bult and MNatural Environment — Europe 2662 3.000
Bult and Natural Environment — Australia Asta Pacific 924 855
Central 109 109
Group total 4,507 4,686
Days absent (%) 2 2
Average length of service (years) 6 6
Working part tme (%) 9 10
Retention rate (%)** 8l 80
Female (%) 29 30
Age profile

Employees aged under 25 (%) 9 9
Employees aged 25-29 (%) 16 16
Employees aged 30-49 (%) 54 55
Employees aged 50+ (%) 21 20
*Additionally Energy makes extensive use of assocates and sub-consuftants (these equated to approxmately 750 full tme equivalent employees in 2012)
**excluding redundancies

The attraction, retention and motivation of high calibre employees 15 a strategic imperative for alt businesses within the Group To
achieve this businesses maintain appropnate remuneration structures as well as an environment in which employees are able to
develop their skills in a way that can be applied to our clients’ requirements

Each of the businesses has the remit to put in place arrangements that meet their specific demands whilst working within a framework :
of structures and systems that are overseen at Group level Human resource professionals are employed throughout the Group to

support the achievement of this objective Each of the Executve Directors has overalt accountability for the development of human

resource practice within the businesses for which they are responsible

The Group's policies in refation to health and safety are descnbed on page 12

Employee Engagement

Building an environment in which employees feel engaged with their business and the Group as a whole 1s a key component of our
strategy This 1s of particular importance in ensunng the successful iIntegration of newly acquired businesses We use the Group intranet
as 2 means to communicate the Group's businesses and achievements as well as policies and procedures Corporate newsletters

also facilitate this flow of Information New employees receive an induction and regular staff appraisals facihitate open commurucation
between employer and employee as well as dentifying developmental needs

The Group operates share plans across all its businesses amed at giving employees a tangble interest in the Group s overall
performance Share purchase plans are accordingly open to the vast majorty of our employees and enable them to purchase shares
in the Company with the benefit of a matching share contnbution from the Company A performance share plan 15 also operated for
more senior employees, which offers the potential to build an interest in the Company over a number of years

i0
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Business Review

Traming and Development

The Group s committed to the education and development of s employees to enable them 1o realise their potential and
effectiveness Dwisional directors and project managers are responsible for the management of training and venfication of technical
competence for project personnel in accordance with our quality management systems Continuing professional development 1s of
particular importance for our professional employees who are required to demonstrate technical competence within their specific
sectors The Group accordingly supports a range of schemes through professional bodies and s a recognised training provider in a
rumber of techmical fields The Group provides training to the oif and gas sector through its Nautilus business, which also assists in
providing technical training wathin the Group It has also continued to operate approved structured traning schemes for its chartered
and water engineers in the UK as well as for avil engineers in the UK and Ireland

Dunng 2012 RPS continued its long-term practice of supporting staff in pursuing relevant higher education courses This involved
sponsonng courses at a total of 34 universities and colleges across the Unted Kingdom Ireland, USA and Australia.

Vacant positions within the Group are, wherever possible, filled from within and our developmental and training programmes support
this objective

Equa! Opportunities

RPS provides equal oppertunities for all its employees and potential employees regardless of their sex, sexual orentation, trans-gender
status, religon or belef, mantal status owvil partnership status, pregnancy, age, disability, race, colour, natonality, national or ethnic
ongns The pahicy applies to the process of recrutment and selection, promotion, tratning and development, conditicns of work, pay
and benefits and to every other aspect of employment




Corporate Responsibility

Commitment

The Group's corporate governance policies are described in detail elsewhere in the Report and Accounts and prowvide a framework
within which 1t can look to achieve attractive levels of return for rts shareholders whilst stnking a balance between this objective and
recognition of its obligations to its employees chents and society n general The Corporate Governance Committee exercses general
oversight in relation to environmental, social and govermance (‘ESG’) matters although in the normal course of business the Board
and the Executive Committee assess the nsks and opportuniies to which such issues give nse In the Board's wiew 1t has adequate
infarmation to enable the proper assessment of these 1ssues

As noted in the Risk Management section of this report environmental issues are most fikely to effect the Group through the Impact
matenal adverse events may have on the Group's trading Whilst given the nature of it's actwities the Group's own impact on the
environment s comparatively modest, the Group's performance s monitored as outhned below and apprepnate action to rminimise
impact taken where possible The Group can, however, make a greater contnbution to the environment through its own expertise and
many of the projects with which 1t 1s involved The Group adwvises international bodies, governments, local authonties and companies
on the improvement of environmental performance Projects include the development of strategies to reduce carbon emissions as well
as the adaptation of buldings and infrastructure to anticipate chmate changes

The policies adopted by the Group in refation to employees are descnbed elsewhere in this report and thase relating to health and
safety are descnbed below, the nsks associated with failures in both of these areas are descnbed in the Risk Management section
on pages 8 and $ The Group recognises the importance of mantaining high standards of business conduct and contnbuting to the
communities with which it 15 invalved as detaled below In the Board's view the challenges, nsks and opporturities created by ESG
issues as outhned in the Report and Accounts are uniikely to change significantly in the foreseeable future

The Group remans a constituent member of the FTSE4Good Index which consists of those companies that satssfy a set of globally
recognised standards in the area of corporate responsibility It 15 also a participating member of the Carbon Disclosure Project
prowviding data on an annual basis

Standards of Business

The Group ams to be honest and farr i all aspects of its business Through codes of conduct employees are required to adopt high
standards of behaviour in ther dally professional roles or when travelling on business Employees are also required to be sympathetic
to the cultures of and comply with the laws and regulations of the countnes in which they operate, as well as gving due regard to

the safety, the well being and the human rights of all project personnel and relevant focal communities All RPS employees must

avold personal or professional activities and financial interests that could conflict with their responstbilities to the Group if a conflict of
interest does anse then this must be acknowledged and reported Employees must not seek persanal gain from third parties, or abuse
their position within the Group for personal gain, the Group has a policy of zero tolerance towards acts of bribery

Health and Safety

The health and safety of the Group's employees and others we affect 1s of paramount importance and we remain committed to good
practice that as a rminimum complies with the requirements of law The Board receives and considers a report relating to health and
safety at afl regular meetings The Board also sets the overall framework and standards for the management of health and safety the
implementation of which is overseen by the Company Secretary Within this context each of the Group's businesses 1s responsible for
the development of appropnate safe working conditions and systems to protect employees, contractors, visitors and others who miy
be affected by the Group's actvities Each business has appropnately qualified health and safety advisors 1o develop and implement
these systems Health and safety performance is reported to and reviewed by the Board as well as at operating company Jevel Each
business within the Group has a systern for reporting and investigating accidents dangerous occurrences and work-related diseases All
such incidents are investigated to determine the root cause Any significant ncidents are reported within the Group as a whole and
spearfically brought to the attenuon of the Board

Where appropnate work activities are assessed for health and safety nsks and appropriate contrals put in place Health and safety
systems are subject to regular audit. All employees are trained to ensure that they have the appropnate skills to carry out their job
safely Senior management are trained to ensure that obhigations to employees for whom they are responsible are properly discharged

OHSAS 18001 15 an internationally recognised standard for heatth and safety management that 15 aligned with the 1SO 9000 (Quality
Management) and ISO 4000 (Environmental Management) standards 32% of employees across the Group work in offices that now
have third party accreditation to the OHSAS 18001 standard
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Business Review

Dunng the year the Group was neither prosecuted for the breach of health safety regulations nor subject to any investigation by
regulatory authonty in 2012, the reportable acaident rate was 27 accidents per 1,000 employees {2011 23) Accidents that do occur
most commonly relate to manual handling activities, shps and falls

Reportable Accident Rates

Group 20012 2011
Reportable injunes 14 12
Reportable injunes incident rate per 1,000 employees 27 23

Community Involvement

RPS has supported a range of commurity and chartable intiatives with gits in kind and financial contnbutions throughout the year,
mostly at office level In 2012 the Group and its staff gave or raised £797 000 in chantable contnbutions (2011 £438,000) Taking into
account the £168.000 spent on academic bursanes and educational intiatives (201 1 £250,000), the total contnbution of the Group
and its employees to the communities n which 1t operates was £365000 (2011 £688,000)

Tree Aid

The Group has for a number of years been an active supporter of Tree Aid and its programme of education, tree planting and
woodland conservation programmes in sub-Saharan Afrnca The Group has increasingly focused its chantable contribution upon its
work and 1s acknowledged as being Tree Aid's largest corporate sponsor, having cantnbuted a total of £153,000 towards projects

in Ghana and Mali in 2012 The Group has also commuitted further funding of £210,000 over the next two years In addiion to s
financial support the Group has been able to utllise the skil's of its employees to make an increasingly important technical contabution
to Tree Aid’s work. This has seen a number of employees working on the ground with Tree Aid and has included soll erosion
mapping, a biodiversity study and GIS mapping of relevant geographic features Both Tree Ad and RPS are grateful for the important
contnbution these employees have made

We are proud to have further developed our association with this award winning work that assists some of Afnca’s poorest rural
communities to succeed in the fight against poverty and the effects of climate change

Environmental Management and Chmate Change
Although as a consultancy organisation our impact on the environment 15 comparatively moderate, the Group seeks to keep this to a
minimum through the adoption of appropnate standards and the setting of specific targets

The Group endeavours to
B comply with all relevant national and regional legislation as a minimem standard,
W comply with cades of practice and other requirements such as those specified by reguiators and our clients,

B uthse suppliers that offer products which are sustainable, recyciable or environmentally sensitrve wherever practicable
and economic,

promote practical energy efficency and waste mimmisation measures and

B provide a shared inter-office IT network together with communications and video conferencing technology that reduces the need
for business trave!

To achieve these objectives appropriate training 1s provided to enable activities to be conducted in an environmentally sensitive
manner and sufficient management resources are allocated to enable effective implementation of polices Appropnate parts of the
Group have achieved ISO 14001, the ntemationally recognised environmental management system standard Facilties for recycling
office waste are n place at our offices Dunng 2012 our offices continued to recycle waste paper, spent toner and ink. cartndges,
obselete computer hardware, panters and mobile phanes Proceeds from this recycling are donated to charrty

The carbon footprint for RPS in 2011 recalculated in accordance with Greenhouse Gas Protocol and current Defra guidance
amounted to 20 |68 tonnes Calculated on a similar basis the overall carbon footpnnt decreased to 19,584 tonnes in 2012 This small
decrease reflects the fact that the company operations were relatively consistent with previous years and demonstrates the continued
success of efficiency programmes

The specific target set by the Board 1s to reduce energy consumption per capita by 5% per annum for office energy consumption This
target was not qurte achieved in 2012 with office gas and electncrty consumption decreasing by 3% over the prior year from 35 MwH
to 34 MwhH per employee The target was set in 2008 and in each year since, with the exception of 2009 when restructunng within




the Group resulted in an increase, a decrease either marginally above or below it has been achieved As previously our ability to sustain
improvement will be dependent on economic circumstances, the continuing uncertain environment In which we operate means that
the structure of our businesses may be affected in ways that make the achievements of our targets more chaflenging

The Group's policies and objectives for environmental management are reviewed from time to time in the light of changes within
the Group's businesses, new legislatien and emerging practice As an environmenial consultancy the Group s fully cogrisant of the
mandatory carbon reporting regulabions that will apply to company’s histed on the London Stock Exchange and which will apply to the

Group for the financial year ending 31 ODecember 2013 To the imited extent necessary the Group s reporting for that year will be
adjusted to fully reflect the new obligations
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The Board

Brook Land
Non-Executive Chairman

Aged 63 Brook Land was formerly a
senior partner of and 15 now a consultant
to Nabarro He is a director of 2 number
of pnivate companies Untll June 2008

he was Sernior Independent Director of
Signet Group plc He was appointed to
the Board in 1997 angd s alsc Chairman of
the Nomination Committee

Dr Alan Hearne
Chief Executive

Aged 60 Alan Hearne holds a degree

In economics and a doctorate in
environmental planning Following

a penod of academic research inta
environmentai planning he joined RPS in
1978, becoming a Director in [979 and
Chief Executive in 1981 Alan was the
plc Entrepreneur of the Year in 2001
was made a Companion of the Institute
of Management in 2002, a member of
the Board of the Companions in 2007, a
fellow of Aston Business School in 2006
and an henerary Doctor of the Universrity
of Kent 1n 201

Gary Young

Finance Director

Aged 53 Gary Young graduated from
Southampton University i 1982 and
qualified as a Chartered Accountant in 1986
with Pnce Waterhouse Before joining RPS
he held a number of finance director roles
including posons within Rutland Trust

plc and AT&T Caprtal He joined RPS in
September 2000 and was appointed to the
Board in November of that year

Dr Phil Williams
Executive Director

Aged 60 Phil Williams joined the
Group in September 2003 through the
acquisition of Hydrosearch Associates
Limited where he held the position

of Managing Director Phil joined
Hydrosearch in 1981 and was appointed
Managing Director in 1983 Over the
next 20 years he led Hydrosearch as
the company developed into one of the
world's largest energy sector consulting
groups Phil was appointed to the Board
in December 2005

Robert Miller-Bakewell
Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 60 Robert joined the Board in May
2010, 15 neanng the end of an initial three
year term and has agreed to serve for a
further three years Robert was a Senior
Director of Investment Research at Mermil
Lynch from 1998 to 2008 and prior to
this worked as an investment analfyst with
NatWest Markets and its predecessor
companies Over the previous twenty years
tus focus was on analysing and adwvising
water, waste, transport and environmental
infrastructure companies both in the UK
and interationally Until the end of 2012
he was a member of OFWAT s Future
Regulation Panel Robert is a member of
the Audit and Nomination Committees as
well as being Senior Independent Director

Management & Governance

John Bennett
Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 65 John was appointed to the
Board in June 2006 He s a Chartered
Accountant with 30 years expenence

in the house bulding industry He was
Finance Director of Westbury ple, until

it was acqured early n 2006 Me has
wide experence of financial management,
capital and debt raising, acquisiions and
investor relations and he played a leading
role In the strategic development of
Waestbury nto a top ten volume house
bulder in the UK John 15 serving a third
three-year term He 15 Chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneraton Committee

Louise Chariton
Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 52 Louse was appointed to the
Board in May 2008 She s Group Senior
Partner of Brunswick Group LLP, the
Intemationzl corporate communications
group of which she was a co-founder
Louise 15 also a Director and Trustee of the
Natural History Muséum She 1s serving a
second three-year term and 1s a member
of the Remuneration and Nemination
Committees

Tracey Graham
independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 47 Tracey Graham joined the
Board in Septernber 2011 having been
Chief Executive of Talans Limited, an
international cash management business,
unti 2010 Tracey led the management
buy-out of Talans from De La Rue Plc
backed by pnvate equity house Carlyle
in 2008 Tracey s also an independent
Non-Executive Director of Dialight Plc
Albemarle and Bond Plic, and the
Royal London Group She chars the
Remuneraton Committee and Is a
member of the Audit Committee
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial statements of RPS Group Plc and its subsidiary undertakings (the
‘Group'} for the year ended 3| December 2012

Results and dividend

The Consolidated Income Statement 15 set out on page 35 and shows the profit for the year The Directors recommend a final
dividend of 3 34p (2011 29p) per share This together with the intenm dividend of 306p (2011 2 66p) per share paid on |8 October
2012 gwves a total dividend of 640p (20F1 5 56p) per share for the year ended 31 December 2012

Principal activities and business review

The Group's principal activities and performance dunng the year and future prospects as well as its business model and strategy are
described on pages 3 to 14 Financial key performance indicators can be found on page 2 The directors review perfarmance using
these non-statutory measures as well as segmental and underlying profit, as they consider these to be more meaningful measures
of performance These performance measures are defined in note | (g) of the Consolidated Financial Statements Note 3 includes
a Group Reconcliation’ of the adjusted measures to the statutory results The Board does not use non-financial key performance
indicators to assess the Group as a whole, although parts of the Group do use non-financial key performance indicators from time
to time

Consistent with its size and complexity, the Group has a large number of contractual relationships with chents and suppliers In the
Directors’ view, however, there is no single contract or client relationship, which is essental to the Group’s business The principal
operating subsidiary undertakings are hsted in note S to the Parent Company Financial Statements

The Business Review contains certain forward looking statements with respect to the financial condition, results of operations and
businesses of RPS These statements involve risk and uncertainty because they relate to events and depend upon circumstances that
may occur in the future There are a number of factors that could cause actual results or developments to differ matenally from thase
expressed or implied by these forward looking statements The current uncertainty in global economic outlook inevitably iIncreases the
nsks to which the Group 15 exposed Nathing in the Business Review should be construed as a profit forecast

Principal risks and uncertainties
The prinapal risks and uncertanties are reported on pages 8 and 9 in the Risk Management section of the Business Review

Corporate Governance

The Directors report on corporate governance can be found on pages 21 to 25 and incorporates other parts of the Report and
Accounts as detaled therein

Substantial shareholdings
The Company 15 aware of the following interests in excess of 3% of the ordnary share captal of the Company as at 27 February 2013

No of shares Percentage
Aberforth Partners 16,670,521 759
F & C Asset Management 11508831 524
Kames Capital 10,528,536 479
Montanaro Investment Managers 7.844,549 357
Legal & General Investment Management 7,685,447 350
William Blair & Co 7431022 338
Impax Asset Management 6,894,063 314
Franklin Templeton Fund Management 6,875,000 313
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Directors

Management & Govemnance

The Directors of the Company as at 3| December 2012 and ther beneficial interests in the ordinary share capital of the Company were

No of shares at

Ne of shares at

311212 and at M1 and at

2710213 02/03/12

Brook Land 30,000 30,000
John Bennett - -
Louise Charlton - -
Robert Miller-Bakewell 5,000 5000
Tracey Graham 5,000 5.000
Alan Hearne 12,030 12,030
Phil Williams 418,439 418439
Gary Young 88,416 88416

The Crrectors’ interests under the Comparty s Share incentive Plan were

No of shares at

Mo of shares at

31412442 KHvAR
Alan Hearmne 9,883 8154
Pral Wilharns 7,459 5799
Gary Young 13,182 11,361
The Directors’ interests under the Company's Executive Share Option Plan dunng the year are set out below
I Jan 31 Dec Market value Date from
2012 Exercised 2012 Exercise at date of which Expiry date
Director number number number prce exercise exercisable
Alan Heame 62,500 - 62,500 [110p - 20/3/2008 207372013
28,157 - 28,157 146 5p - 1 2/8/2008 12/8/2013
Gary Young 13,720 - 13,720 1465p - 1 2/8/2008 12/8/2013
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The Directors’ interests under the Company's Long Term Incentive Plan dunng the year are set out below:

. Value of
grant at date Market Value
Year of I Jan 2012 of grant 31 Dec 2012 of Shares
Director award number £000s Released Lapsed number at Grant
Adan Hearne 2009 275,261 395 - 275261 - 143 5p
Phil Williams 2009 156,098 224 - 156,098 - 1435p
Gary Young 2009 111,498 160 - 111498 - 143 5p

The awards made in 2009 having lapsed dunng the year, the Long Term Incentive Plan has now ceased to operate
The market prce of the shares at 31 December 2012 was 211 90p and the range dunng the financial year was 179 6p to 256 6p

None of the Directors were matenally interested in any significant contract 1o which the Company or any of its subsidianes were party
duning the year

Employees

The Group s policies in relation to employees are disclosed on pages 10 and 11

Charitable and community donations

Dunng the year the Group made chantable donations in cash of £237,000 The Group made no contnbution to political orgarusations
duning the year

Supplier payment policy

The Group has due regard to the payment terms of suppliers and settles all undisputed accounts in accordance with payment terms
agreed with the supplier At the year end the Group had 22 days’ purchases outstanding m respect of payments to suppliers and sub-
contractors (2011 38 days) At the year end the Company had 29 days' purchases outstanding in respect of payments to suppliers and
sub-contractors (2011 8 days)

Going concern

The Group's business activities, a review of the 2012 results together with factors likely to affect its future development and prospects
are set out an pages 3 to 7 Note |6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements sets out the borrowings of the Group and cansiders
hquidity nsk, whilst note 29 descnbes the Group's approach to capital management, and financial nsk management in general

The Group has had good cash flow for a number of years, had a modest amount of net bank debt at the year end and operates well
within the financial covenants applying to the main bank facility The Group’s banking faclities were renewed dunng the year and will
not now expire until July 2016

The Group has a diverse range of businesses in a spread of geographies and as a consequence the Directors believe that the Group 15
well placed to manage :ts business nsks successfully

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future despite the current uncertain economic outlook. Thus they continue to adopt the going concem basis of accounting
in prepanng the annual financial staterments

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The Drrectors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company, for safeguarding the assets for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other rregulanties and for the preparation of a Directors Report and Remuneration Report which comply with the requirements of
the Comparies Act 2006

Financial staterents are published on the Group s website in accordance with legistation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and disserminatton of financial statements, which may vary from legisiation in other yjunsdicuions The mantenance and
accuracy of the Group's website 15 the responsibility of the Directors The Directors’ responsibility also extends to the ongoing integnty
of the financial statements contained therein
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Managerment & Governance

Each of the persons who 1s a Director at the tune of this report confirms that

W so far as the Director 1s aware, there 15 no relevant audit infermation of which the Company's auditers are unaware, and

® the Director has taken all the steps that he or she ocught to have taken as a Director in order to make himself/fherself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and shouid be interpreted in accordance with the prowvisions of the Companies Act 2006

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Financial Staterments in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006 The Directors are also required to prepare financial statemenits for the Group in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation The Directors have chosen to
prepare financial statements for the Company in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable law)

Group finanaal stotements

International Accounting Standard | requires that financral statements present farly for each financial year the Group's financial position
financial performance and cash flows This requires the farthful representation ¢f the effects of transactions, other events and condrtions
in accordance with the defintions and recognition cntena for assets, labilities, income and expenses set out in the International
Accounting Standards Board's ‘Framewaork for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Staternents’ In virtually all circumstances, a
fair presentation will be achieved by compliance with all applicable IFRS A fair presentation also requires the Directors to

W properly select and apply appropnate accounting policies,

W present information, Including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant reliable, comparable and understandable
information,

B provde additional disclosures when comphance with the speafic requirements in IFRS is insufficient to enable users to understand
the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's financial position and financial performance and

# make an assessment of the Company s ability to continue as a going concerm
Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view

of the state of affairs of the Group and 1ts profit or loss for that penod

Parent company finanaal statements

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financiat year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period In preparing these financial statements, the
Directors are required to

B select sutable accounting pelicies and then apply thern consistenily,
B make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

B state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed subject to any materal departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements, and

B prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis uniess it 15 Nappropriate to presume that the Company wilf continue
in business

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and far view
of the state of affairs of the company for that penod

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in prepanng the financial staterents

Durectors” responsibilities statement pursuant to DTR 4
The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge

W the financial staterments, prepared In accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU, give a
true and fair view of the assets, liabiltties, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings inciuded in the
consolidation taken as a whole, and

®  the Business Review' includes a far review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Company
and the undertakings included i the consohdation taken as a whole, and that the ‘Rusk Management report includes a description
of the principal nsks and uncertamnties that they face
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Financial instruments

Detals on the use of financial Instruments and finangial risk are Included n note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Post balance sheet events

Onlé January 2013 the Company announced the acquistion of Petroleum instrtute for Continuing Education (PEICE?), a Canadian
based business providing geoscience and engineenng training to the ol and gas industres, for a maximum consideration of C $117m

Additional information

The following additional information 1s provided for shareholders as a result of the implementation of the Takeover Directive inta
UK Law

Asg at 31 December 2012 the Company's issued share caprtal consisted of 219 566 269 ordinary shares of 3p each At a generat
meeting of the Company every holder of ordinary shares present in person 1s entitled to vote on a show of hands and on a poll every
rember present In person or by proxy and entitled to vote has one vote for every ordinary share held There are no shares :n issue
that carry special nghts with regard to control of the Company There are no restnctions on the transfer of ordinary shares in the
Company other than those that may be imposed by law or regulation from ume to time

The Company's Articles of Association may be amended by special resolution at a general meeting of the shareholders Directors are
appointed by ordinary resolution at a general meeting of the shareholders The Board can appaint a Director but anyone so appointed
must be elected by an ordinary resclution at the next general meeting Under the Articles of Association any Director whe has held
office for more than three years since therr last appointment must offer themselves for re-election at the next annual general meeting
it Is the Company's policy, however, that all Directors should stand for annual re-election

The Directors have power to manage the Company's business subject to the provision of the Company's Articles of Association,
law and applicable regulations The Directors have power to 1ssue and buy back shares in the Company pursuant to the terms and
limitations of resolutions passed by shareholders at each annual general meeting of the Company No such power was exercised
dunng the year under review

Directors' interests in the share capital of the Company are shown In the table on page |7 Substantial shareholder interests of which
the Company Is aware are shown on page |6

The Company 15 party to a number of commercial agreements which, In line with normal practice in the industry, may be affected by
a change of control following a takeover bid None of these agreements are however, considered to be of materal signficance There
are no agreements between the Company and (s directors or employees prowiding for compensation for loss of office of employment
resulting from a takeover bid

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held on 3 May 2013 The Notice of Annual General Meeting arculated with this Report and
Agcounts contains a full explanation of the business to be conducted at that meeting This includes a resclution to re-appoint Deloitte
LLP as the Company's Auditors

By crder of the Board

Nicholas Rowe
Secretary
28 February 2013

Regstered Office

20 Westemn Avenue
Milton Park

Abingdon

Oxfordshire OX14 45H

Registered in England No 02087785
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Corporate Governance

Chairman’s Introduction

| am pleased to have the opportunity to repart for the second time on how the pnnaples relating to the role and effectiveness of the
Board contained within the UK Corporate Governance Code (‘the Code’) have been apphed at RPS The report below explains our
complizrce aganst the detaled provisions of the Code dunng 2012 as well as giving a more detalled view of the activities of the Board
and ts Committees it 15 satisfying to be able to report that we have been fully compliant throughout the year As Chairman | have the
key roles of providing leadership to the Board and ensunng we mantain an environment to enable the Board to perform effecuvely |
remain of the view that we have the appropnate governance structures in place as a key component of achieving these objectives and
that these are provided in a practical and cost effective way In addition to myself, the Board comprises three executive and four non-
executive Directors

As explained in my first report, 2011 saw a number of changes 1o the Board There have been no further changes dunng 2012

and a welcome stabiity Our executive team has many years of expenence within RPS and its predecessor companies whilst our
non-executives are from a range of highly relevant backgrounds and disciplines as outined elsewhere in this document As the year
progressed the Board developed into an iIncreasingly cohesive team able and willng to draw on the breadth of talent and expenence
it possesses This is particularly reassuring as, In common with many businesses, we continue to face an uncertain trading environment,
caused by the continuing turbulence in the financial markets and consequent siow economue growth The continuing strength of the
Group and the quality of its management was demonstrated by the termns and manner on which we were able to renew our banking
facilities in july 2012

Succession planning remains under continuous review | am personally of the view that over-planning succession accelerates unwanted
change, which 15 neither in the best interests of the Company, nor its shareholders

Robert Miller-Bakewell, who is our Senior Independent Director, was appointed for a three year term which will expire in 2013 and |
am very pleased to repart that he has agreed to continue for a further three years

The Board's agenda continues to reflect the key 1ssues that we face Qur discussions in relation to Group strategy, performance and
potential acquisitions are balanced by consideration of appropriate controls, systems and policies to underpin our progress This year
increased prominence has been given to Health & Safety reporting focussing on maintaining a high standard of performance and where
appropnate, improvement

In addition, our non-executive directors continue to visit and engage with our businesses globally in a manner that assists and informs
their contnbutions at Board level

Our Board Committees, supported by extemal professional advice as required, continue to operate in an effective and professional
manner and enjoy good lines of communication to the Board as a whole

The Board completed its annual review process in September, which gave nse to no major issues or dificulties The Board has recently
commissioned an externally facilitated review for the first time This will take place soon and be reported on in the 2013 Report
and Accounts

The Group's performance has remained sold notwithstanding the continuing economic uncertanty Much of this is down to the hard
work and loyalty of our employees to whom | would like to extend the Board's thanks | am confident that the strength of our Board
and the manner in which it operates will continue to ba a key element in sustaining this performance

Brook Land
Chairman

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee Is responsible for overseeing the Group structure and organisation and evaluating these in the
centext of developments in standards of corporate govermance The Committee keeps the Board and s other committees appraised of
developments that may impact ther structure and actvities It also oversees the polices descnbed in the Corporate Responsibility Statement
as well as the Group's environmental policies The Committee consists of the Chaimman, Chief Executive and Company Secretary

UK Corporate Governance Code

The Board 15 pleased to report that the Company complied with al provissons of the UK Corporate Governance Code {the 'Code”)
throughout the year A new version of the Code was published in September 2012 which 1s applicable for financial reporting penods
commencing an after | October 2012 and aganst which the Board will report in future years
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Board Responsibilities
The Board has a schedule of matters that are reserved for its decision, which includes the matters summansed below

B Determining the Group’s overall strategy B The approval of policies and systems for nsk management

B Approving annual budgets and financial reporting including and assurance

annual and half year results and interim management
statemenits

The approval of overall polcies and plans for human resources

The appointment of key advisers to the Group |

W The approval and recommendation of dnidends The approval of major items of caprtal expenditure

B The approval of significant acquisitions and disposals The settiement of major litigation
Board Structure

At the date of this report the Board compnsed three Executive, four Non-Executve Directors and the Chairman There were no
changes to Board membership during the year The Executive Directors are responsible for the day-to-day management of all the
Group's business activities

The Non-Executive Directors are, in the opinion of the Board, all ndependent of management and contnbute independent judgement
as well as extensive knowledge and expenence to the proceedings of the Board The Chairman was independent on appointment
The Non-Executive Oirectors are appointed for three-year terms, which may subsequently be extended Any term beyond six years
for a Non-Executive s ngorously reviewed, taking account of the requirement to refresh the Board All directors are subject to annuai
re-election by shareholders

The Charrman and Chief Executive have clear and distinct roles The key functions of the Chairman are to conduct Board meetings as
well as meetings of shareholders and to ensure that all Directors are properly brefed in order to take a full and constructive part in
Board discussions The Chief Executive's role 1s to develop and lead business strategies and processes to enable the Group's to meet
the requirements of its clients as well the needs of its employees and shareholders

The Senior Independent Director 15 available to shareholders who waish to raise concerns that cannot be resolved through the
Charmman, Chief Executive or Fimance Director Robert Mifler-Bakewell acted as the Senior Independent Director throughout the year

The Board 15 assisted by the Audit, Remuneration Nommnaton and Corporate Governance Comimittees, all of which activities are
descrnbed in this repart The Chairman of each Committee provides updates as to its activities at Board meetings

The table below shows the number of Board and Comemittee meetings attended by each of the Directors dunng the year

Full Audit Remuneration Nominatien Corporate

Board Committee Commitiee Committee Governance

Brook Land 9 ’ - - | 2
Alan Heame S - - - 2
Gary Young 9 - - - -
Phil Willams 9 - - _ -
John Bennett E) 5 5 - -
Lowise Chariton 8 - 5 -
Robert Miller-Bakewelt g 5 - - -
Tracey Graham 8* 5 5 - -
Number of meetings held 9 5 5 2

*Attended BNE AAP board meeting instead of one Group board meeting

Board Operations

The Board generally meets an a monthly basis, except dunng holiday penods, although additional meeungs may be held should
circumstances require The Board agenda gives signiicant focus to business performance and strategy Comprehensive papers are
circulated well In advance of Board meetings These include general updates and bnefings en significant ssues from each of the
Executive Directors and the Company Secretary These reports and other matters of mmediate iImportance are discussed by the
Board Presentations on the operations of particular operating companies are made from time to time The Company Secretary assists
the Chairman in ensunng that Board procedures are followed and advises on matters of Corporate Governance The services of the
Company Secretary are avalable to Directors generally

The Executive Directors meet formally at least once a month The Executive Committee which consists of the three Executive
Directors supported by the Company Secretary, 1s responsible for all operational matters within the Group subject to those matters
that remain reserved for the Board The minutes of Executive Committee meetings are circulated to the Non-Executive Directors
for review

22

Report and Accounts 2012




Management & Governance

Where Directors have concerns that cannot be resolved regarding the management of the Company or a proposed action, these
concerms are recorded in the Board minutes In accordance with Company policy any concerns expressed by a Director on resignation
are provided, in a wnitten statement, to the Chairman for circulation to the Board No issues of this nature have ansen dunng the year

The Company's Articles of Association contain provisions that allow Directors to authorise conflicts in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006 These provisions enable the Directors to authonse a conflict, subject to such terms as they may think fit, which may

include exclusion from voting in respect of the relevant 1ssue and exclusion from information and discussion relating 1o the matter

The procedure approved by the Board for authonsing conflicts reminds directors of the need to consider their duties as directors

and not grant an authonsation unless they believe, in good farth, that this would be likely to promote the success of the Company

A potentially conflicted Director cannot vote on such an authonsing resolution or be counted in a quorum for that purpose Any
authonty granted may be terminated at any time and the director 1s Informed of his obligation to inform the Company without delay
should there be any change n the nature of the conflict authonsed [n addition, the Board requires the Nomination Committee to
check that any indwvidual it nominates for appointment to the Board s free of any potential conflict of interest No actual or potential
conflicts of interest arose dunng the year under review

There 15 an agreed procedure for Directors to take independent professional advice and traning at the Company's expense The
Company maintains Directors and Officers hability insurance with a current imit of ndemnity of £20m

The Group's strategy and its business model are descnbed on page 3

Board Performance

The Board undertakes an annual appraisal of its performance Directors are asked to complete a detaled review relating to the general
operation of the Board and ts Committees as well as performance against group strategy The results are reviewed by the Chairman
and a summary of the pnncipa! findings is presented to and discussed by the Board Where appropnate the Board agrees changes to
process and structure that are necessary to address the issues ansing Such a review was undertaken dunng 2012 and identified the
need for directors to be better informed in relation to developments in the area of Corporate Governance Steps have been taken

to address this 1ssue through the avallability of an educational and updating service available through the Company's Auditors and the
inclusion of addrtional tems within Board papers

The Non-Executive Directors hold meetings with the Chairman without the Executives present at least twice a year The Non-
Executives led by the Senior Non-Executive Director, meet on an annual basis to appraise the Chairman's performance The Executive
Directors have their performance individually reviewed by the Chief Executive against annually set objectives The Chief Executive has
his performance reviewed by the Charman and Senior Independent Non-Executive Director The Board's annual appraisal process
Incaorporates a review of the performance of Non-Executive Directors

Directars receve an induction on appomntment including consideratle information on the Company as well as the Board and its
procedures They afso meet other members of the Board to be bnefed on strategy, financial matters and other key 1ssues Advice 15
avallable from the Company's solicitors If required Dunng the year updates are provided on key technical issues as required including
those relating to corporate governance and corporate social responsibility Non-Executive Directors undertake visits to operating
companies in arder to improve understanding of more operational issues

The Chairman 1s mindful of the provisions of the Code providing that an externally fachtated performance review should be carred
out at least ance in every three years and has commissioned such a review for 2013 This will be carned out shortly and the results
reported in the 2013 Report and Accounts

Communication

The Company attaches great importance to communication with its shareholders and other stakeholders In addition to regular
financial reporting the Group website provides up-to-date information about its organisation the services 1t affers and newsworthy
subjects The Company also responds to letters and enquines from shareholders and others with an interest in the Group

In addition to presentations of full and half-year results semior executives led by the Chief Executive hold meetings with the company s
prnncipal shareholders 1o discuss the Company's strategy and performance The Chairman and Semior Independent Director are also
avallable to discuss 1ssues with major shareholders An investor relations report 15 presented at all regular Board meetings to ensure
that the Board 1s kept aware of the views of major shareholders and the investment community generally

The Charman of each of the Board Committees attends the Annual General Meetng and 15 avalable to answer questions

Audit and internal controls
The respective respansibiities of the Directors and the independent auditors 1n connection with the accounts are explaned on pages
I8 19 and 33 and the statement of the Directors in respect of going concem appears on page |8

The Board has throughout the year and up to the date of approval of the financial statements had pracedures in place as
recommended in the guidance In the UK Corporate Governance Code and the supporting document issued by the Financial Reporting
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Counal ' Intemal Control Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code” The principal nsks to which the Group 15 exposed and
the measures to mitigate such nsks are described on pages 8 and 9

The Board 1s responsible for the Group's system of nsk management and internal controf, which are designed to prowide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against matenal misstatement or loss The Board reviews from time to tme the effectiveness of the system
of internal control and nsk management from information provided by management and the Group's external auditors Such a review
was undertaken by the Cormmittee and the Board dunng 2012 the outcome of which was satisfactory The key procedures that the
Dhrectors have established to prowide effective intemal financial controls are as follows

Financial reporting The results for the Group are reported to and reviewed by the Board on a monthly basis A detalled formal
budgeting process for all Group businesses culminates in an annual Group budget which 15 approved by the Board

Financial and accounting principles and intemal financial controls assurance The Group's accounting policies, principles and minimum
standards required for effective financial control are communicated to all accounting teams The Group Finance function undertakes
pencdic detaled reviews to ensure compliance and to foliow up any weaknesses previously identified

Capital investment The Group has clearly defined guidelines for capital expenditure These include detaled appraisal and review
procedures levels of authonty and due diligence procedures in respect of potential business acquisitions

Treasury the Group operates a central treasury function that undertakes required borrowing and foreign exchange transactions as
well as the daly monitoring of bank balances and cash receipts Appropnate payment authonsation processes are in place in all parts
of the Group

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee compnses three independent Non-Executive Directors, John Bennett Robert Miler-Bakewell and Tracey
Graham The Committee has wnitten terms of reference which are avallable on the Company's website and on request from the
Company Secretary Although the Board considers that all current members of the Committee have expenence that 15 relevant to
the role, John Bennett, who 1s a Chartered Accountant is the member of the Committee specfically dentified as having recent and
relevant financial expenence

The major aifference of opinion that arose between the Company and its former aucitors Ermst & Young LLP{'EY") dunng 2011 1n
relation to IFRS3 (2008) Business Combinations and specfically the appropnate treatment contingent deferred consideration was
reported in some detall last year Although the Commyttee fundamentally disagreed with EY's interpretation of this standard the Board
accepted the Committee’s recommendation that EY's interpretation be adopted in respect of the 201 | report and accounts

Aganst the background of this fundarmental disagreement the Board accepted the Committee's recommendation that the extemal
audit appointment be reviewed During 2012 the Committee, accordingly, undertook a competitive tender process of the external
audit appointrment following whuch Deleitte LLP were appointed as the Group's auditors EY had held the audit appointment for only
one year following a similar review undertaken in 2011 and a further change of external auditors at that time was therefore unusual
The Committee and the Board were however firmly of the view that the nature of the disagreement with EY was so fundamental that
a further review was approprate and in the best interest of shareholders

At its annual planning meeting the Committee reviews and approves plans with the Auditers including the locations to be audited and
the key areas of audit focus The committee also reviews the integnty of the Group s financial statements pnor to their submission to
the Board This review includes ensuring that statutory and associated legal and regulatory requirements are met as well as considenng
significant reporting jJudgements, the adoption of appropriate accounting policies and practices and compliance with accounting
standards As part of this process, the Committee receives reports on the scope and cutcome of the annual audit and managerment's
response to this The Committee also monitors the effectiveness of the Group’s intemal financial cortrols and nsk management
processes, this ncluded assisting the Beard in conducting the review of intemmal controls descnbed above The Audit Committee
regularly reviews the need for an intemal audit function and remains of the view that at present the financial controls operating
throughout the Group and the reviews undertaken by the Group Finance function are adequate without a dedicated internal audrt
function In addition, dunng the year members of the Audit Committee wisted Australia and North Amenca to discuss internal control
with senior management and were able to report positively in respect of their findings

The Audit Committee keeps the scope, cost anc effectiveness of the extemal audit under review as well as making recommendations
as to the annual re-appointment of Auditors The independence and effectiveness of the external auditor will continue to be subject to
annual review and audit partners rotated at least every five years As part of its responsibility to ensure independence and objectivity
the Committee has adopted a policy to determine the circumstances in which Auditors may be permitted to undertake non-audit
work for the Group Under the terms of this policy the provision of certain services are prohibited and iInclude those listed below

B bookkeeping services B design and mplementation of financial systems

8 preparation of financial statements B valuation services

24

Report and Accounts 2012




Management & Governance

B investment advisory, broker and dealing servces B general management services

Certain other services are approved up to agreed financial imits with the provision of such services beyond those hmits requinng
approval of the Committee The following fail within this category

B taxation services B adwice relating to nsk management and controls

B transaction support including due diligence W accountancy advice and training
The provision of any service at any level that does not fall within the above categores requires the approval of the Committee

The spit between audit and non-audit fees for the year under review appears on page 49 Taxation serices undertaken by Deloitte
LLP dunng the year were handled by a team that was separate and independent from the external audit team and led by a different
senior partner The Comimittee was satisfied that appropnate safeguards were in place and that the provision of these additional
services by Delotte LLP did not affect their independence as external auditor

The Committee also keeps under review the means by which staff may, n confidence, raise concemns about financial Impropneties
relating to financial reporting, intermal controt or other matters The company's procedure allows for any such matters to be reported
to the Company Secretary who will ensure that any such matters are properly nvestigated and reported to the Audit Committee
and the Board An individual raising a concern need not disclose ther identity and if such identity 15 disclosed it will nat be passed on
without the consent of that indwvidual

Nomination Committee

The Committee meets as required, but not less than once a year, and compnses the Non-executive Chaimman, Brook Land and two
Independent Naon-Executive Directors, Louse Charlton and Rabert Miller-Bakewell The Committee’s key responsibilities include reviewing
the Board structure, size and composition as well as evaluating the balance of skills, knowledge and experence which may be required

in the future and making recommendations to the Board accordingly It 1s also responsible for nominating candidates to the Board when
vacancies anse recommending Directors who are retinng to be put forward for re election and where appropnate considenng any issues
relating to the continuation in office of any Director It has wntten terms of reference which are available on the Company's website and
on request from the Company Secretary

The range of skills and expenence offered by the curent directors s bighlighted 1n the Chairman’s Statement above and the Committee s
satisfied with the balance and membership of the current Board The Committee does, however, remain mindful of the need to ensure its
penodic refreshment. The Committee also keeps succession planning under continuous review and has at all umes, a clear plan which 1s
designed to ensure a smooth transition whenever that 1s needed, for all posts

Account is also taken of the need to ensure that the Non-Executive Directors continue to prowide the range and balance of skills
required The Committee and the Board recognise the importance of diversity One quarter of the Board as currently constituted 1s
fernale which 1s ine with Group's previously announced 25% target in this regard

When Directors are appointed to the Board, this is through a formal, ngorous and transparent process No appointments were made to
the Board dunng the year although on the last occasion that an appointment was made such a process was followed as fully detalled in
last year's report

As noted above Robert Milier Bakewell's inttial three year term as a Non-Executve Director wili expire at the forthcorming Annual
General meeting and he has agreed to contmue for a further three year term This further term was agreed after careful scrutiny, bearing
in mind the need to achieve the appropnate balance between the retention of acquired expenence and refreshment of the Board

Remuneration Committee
The membership and activities of the Remuneration Committee are descnbed in the Remuneration Report on pages 26 to 32

Takeover Directive
Disdlosures required under the Takeover Directive are included on page 20 ardd form part of the Group's Corporate Governance report.

rpsgroup.com

25



Remuneration Report

This report has been prepared in accordance with schedule 8 to the Accounting Regulations under the Companies Act 2006 The
Act requires the auditors to report to the Company's members on certain parts of the Directors’ Remuneration Report and to state
whether in therr opinion those parts of the report have been prepared 1n accordance with the Accounting Regulations This report has
therefore been divided into separate sections for audited and non-audited information

The Committee currently compnses Tracey Graham (Chair), John Bennett, and Louise Charlton all of whom are Independent Non-
Executve Directors There were no changes in Committee membership dunng the year The pnncipal responsibility of the Committee
15 to determine the remuneration of the Executive directors including pension nghts and any compensation payments The Commitiee
also monitors the level and structure of remuneration for the Group s senior management The Committee's detailed terms of
reference are available on the Company’s website and on request from the Company Secretary

The Chairman of the Company and the Chief Executive have both assisted the Remuneration Committee in its deliberations on
other Directors’ remuneration The Company Secretary 15 in attendance at the meeting to prowide the Committee with any additional
advice that 15 required The Committee has continued to receve wholly ndependent adwice on executive compensation from
PncewaterhouseCoopers ('PwC’) PwC provide no other services to the Group

Details of frequency and attendance at meetings of the Committee are detailed on page 22

Unaudited Information

Remuneration policy

The Remuneration Committee s policy for 2012 was to set the main elements of the remuneration package in order to reflect
W the performance of the Group as a whole,

B the performance of the individual Executive Director both for the Group and the businesses under his control,

W pay and conditions throughout the Company,

B the market conditions in the sectors in which the Group operates and

W the increasingly intemational and complex nature of the Group

The Committee recognises that the main competitors of the Group and, therefore, comparators for their remuneration are found
outside the group of companies that are listed In consequence, the Committee needs to reflect that in its deliberations including RPS'
market leading position In a number of those markets The Committee 1s, in addion, mindful of trends and best practice amongst
listed companies of a similar size in the Support Services sector

The policy 15 designed to attract, retain and motivate indmiduals by providing the oppartunity to eam competitive levels of
compensation provided performance is delivered, whilst remaining within the range of compensation offered by similar comparves

Directors’ remuneration is the subject of annual rewew in accordance with this policy Additionally, it focuses on the contribution
to the continued long-term growth and success of the Company and seeks to align Directors’ interests with those of the Company
employees and shareholders

The table below shows the proportion of the maximum potential compensation that 15 performance related for each Executive Director

Fxed Vanable
% %

Alan Hearne 3%3 607
Phil Williams 411 589
Gary Young 448 552
Notes
Fixed compensation comprises Basic salary Pension Contrbution Benefits
VYariable compensation comprises Maxmum contrbution under the Benus Plan

Changes for 2013
The current three year bonus banking plan, the operation of which 1s detaled below, finished at the end of 2012

The Remuneration Committee has consulted with its main shareholders and shareholder representatwe bodies (1SS and ABI) regarding
a new bonus plan to operate from 2013 onwards The Committee would like to thank those who took part in the consultation and 1s
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pleased that the large majonty of shareholders both by number and percentage holding who were consulted were supportive of the
proposed new plan Approval of the new pian 15 being sought at the Company’s Annual General Meeting and full details are contaned
In the notice of that meeting

Base salary and Benchmarking

The Committee sets basic salaries as a part of its overall remuneration policy and therefore takes account of all of those matters

listed above As part of this process the Committee takes account of relevant comparator data The principat grouping used by the
Committee for benchmarking of salanes and other benefits consists of companies with the support services sector and with a range of
market caprtalisations such that the Company sits within the middle of that grouping This consists of the following companies

Aggreko Plc Hays PLC Prermier Famell PLC
Amec Ple Hemeserve PLC Regus PLC

Ashtead Group Plc interserve PLC Serco Group Plc

Atkins WS PLC intertek Group PLC Shanks Group Plc
Babock International Group John Menzies Plc SIG PLC

Bunzl PLC Lavendon Group Flc Speedy Hire PLC

De La Rue Plc Michael Page International Plc SThree PLC
Electrocompanents Ple Mmie Group Trawis Perkins PLC
Filtrona PLC PayPoint PLC White Young Green PLC

As disclosed in detall in last year's report dunng 201 | a full and independent benchmarkng exercise that considered base salanes and
total compensation was camied cut on the Committee's behalf by PwC This exercise also looked at an international sub-set of the
main comparator group to reflect the nternational nature of the Group as well as a review of the UK Energy sector at Divisional level
Having conducted a comprehensive review of this type during 201 | the Commuttee did not consider it necessary to repeat such an
exercise In 2012

The Committee has access to pay and conditions of other employees within the Group when determinng remuneration for the
Executive Directors and alse considered the relationship between general changes to pay and conditions within the Group as a whole

As fully disclosed and explained in last year's report, with effect from 1 January 2012 the Commttee increased the base salary of Alan
Heame by 5% to £446 000, the base salary of Phil Willams by 6 25% to £340,000 and that of Gary Young by 3% to £231,750 The
report was approved by shareholders at the 2012 Annual General Meeting of the Company

wWith effect from | January 2013 the Committee increased the basic salary of all of the drectors by 3%, to £459,400 for Alan Heame
£350,200 for Phil Willams and £238,700 for Gary Young

RPS Group Plc Bonus Banking Plan (the ‘Bonus Plan’)

Background

The Bonus Plan was introduced with effect from | January 2010 to cover a three year penod and 2012 was therefore its third and
final year of operation This single plan replaced the Company’s Long Term Incentve Plan (‘LTIP’) and the annual bonus plan that
aperated up to 31 December 2009 The Bonus Plan the ratonale for which was set out in the 2010 report, was ntroduced following
consultation with the Company's major shareholders The pnnapal details of the Bonus Plan and its operation in 2012 are set out
below As this was the Bonus Plan's final year of operation the sums previously deferred under 1t will, subject to the niles of the plan
be eligible for release along with the 2012 Company contnbution

Summary of the Main Features of the current Bonus Plan

The Bonus Plan 1s based on a percentage of the PBTA eamed during a three year penod which 1s used to create a bonus pool 50% of
the bonus pool 15 paid out In year |, 50% of the cumulative balance of the bonus pool may be paid out in year 2 and the cumulative
balance (after payments in years | and 2 and contribution to the pool in respect of year 3) may be pad out as a farger final payment
at the end of year 3

The key features of the Bonus Plan are

B at the beginning of the plan penod particopants have a plan account to which Company bonus contnbutions are allocated There
wall only be value In a participant's plan account If the Company makes a contnbution to the Plan On the basis that the threshold
profit 1s exceeded and a contribution 1s made into the Plan participants will be entitled to an annual payment from their plan
accounts The Remuneration Committee has discretion when determining the Jevel of anntal payment recewved by the participant
to take nto account ndividual and wider Company and dvisional financal and non financial performance, including the Company's
sustainability, environmental and corporate govermance recard
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8 the Remuneration Committee sets the threshold profit at the beginning of each financiat year,

B up to 3% of the total PBTA for the financial year will be contnbuted to the Bonus Plan for the Executive Directors provided
that the threshold profit is met or exceeded This 1s subject to an individual cap as a percentage of salary The Remuneration
Committee considers a 3% maximum contrbution to be appropriate based on the histonc incentives costs of the Executive
Drrectors of the Company and their counterparts in the other constituents of the Support Services Sector;

m f the actual PBTA for the financial year is less than the threshold profit, 5% of the difference will be deducted from the bonus
pool in the Plan provided that the value cannot be less than zero,

| there 15 a maximum contnbution that can be made to a participant’s plan account in respect of any financial year (see below),
the value of deferred contnbutions in a participant's plan account is held in shares,
participants will be eligible for a payment equal to 50% of the balance of their Plan accounts at the end of each financial year, with

the final balance of the Plan account paid at the end of the third year

Maximum Contribution 2012

Maxamum Cantnbution under the Plan Maxiraurm Centnbution
Name (¥age Salary} for 2012
Alan Heame 200% 200%
Phil Williams 175% 175%
Gary Young 1 50% 1 50%

As disclosed in last year's report the Committee increased the maximum contribution in respect of Phil Wiliams from 1509 to 175%
with effect frem | January 2012

Profit & Contribution Thresholds for 2012

Level Level O Level | Level 2
PBTA Threshold <£535m <£535m £62 5m
{thus figure s net of all borus costs Including the bonus costs under the Plan for this finanaial year))

Bonus Plan Contnbution Percentage 196* 3%*
Bonus Plan Deduction Percentage 15%

*Straight line between paints

The Bonus Plan PBTA for 2012 was £60 |m which generated a Total Plan Contnbution of £1,482,000

For 2012 the Committee introduced a second performance condition relating to the Group's cash collection performance This
provided that for every percentile by which the Group's conversion of profit inte cash for the year exceeded 100%, subject to an
upper iimit of 120% and the maximum contnbution under the plan, an additional bonus equal to 1% of basic salary would be paid
This also provided that in the event that this measure was below 80% for 2012, a deduction equal to 10% of the normal profit
refated bonus would be made The Greup's conversion of profit into cash for 2012 was equal to 105% which resulted in an additional
contnbution of £51,000

Participant Plan Accounts
The following table sets out the details of the Plan Accounts for the Executive Directors

Plan Account Detals A’an;of):m Fr C\'G"gg':m Ga’z'ogg: "8
Opening Balance 334 218 234
2012 Plan Contrbution 689 491 348
2012 Plan Deduction - - -
Total Payable 1,023 709 582

Shares previously deferred under the Bonus Plan together with value of dividends paid on those shares are held within the Company's
employee benefit trust The shares held in respect of each director as at the date of this report are as follows

Alan Heame 142816
Phit Willams 93,544
Gary Young 100,650
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The opening balance shown above represents the value of these shares and related dividends based upon the company’s average
share price In the three months to 3| December 2012 The plan contnbution for 2012 15 the final contnbution ta the Bonus Plan and
15 ascertaned by apphcation of the formula shown above There were no plan deductions for 2012 The 2012 contrnbution will, subject
to the rules of the plan, be paid In cash and 15 shown in the directors’ remuneration table on page 32 The deferred shares and value
of the related dividends will, subject to the rnules of the plan, be released to particpants

Long Term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP*)
The LTIP operated from 2004 untl the introduction of the Bonus Banking Plan, the final award under this plan having been made n

2009 As anticipated in last year's report the performance conditions attached to this final award were not satisfied and this award
lapsed on 31 March 2012

The table below confirms the position In relation to the one award under the LTIP that was outstanding at the beginning of the year

2009 Grant
% of Salary/
Executve Condttion
Maxamum Annual Grant 100
Chief Executive 100
Finance Director 8¢
Executive Directors 60-80
Performance Condition EPS Growth
(see table below)
Status This award
{apsed on
31 March 2012

The performance conditions that attached to the release of LTIP awards related to EPS growth and were as follows

% Average Basic EPS Growth pa above RPI % of 3 Award Relcased®
125
25
375
50
625
75
875
100

= N 00~ O D W

o

*Straght iine refease applies between these points

The Remuneration Committee determined the sabsfaction of the performance condiions in respect of the LTIP The EPS figure used
by the Committee was the audited basic EPS figure disclosed in the Company's Financial Statements

The performance condition companng increases in earmings per share aganst inflation was chosen in order to ensure that LTIP awards
would anly be receved against a background of sustained real increase in the financial performance of the Company Details of the
Directors mdwidual LTIP awards are set out on page |8

Executive Share Option Plan

In years prior to 2004 when the LTIP was mtroduced the Company operated an Executive Share Option Plan All performance
canditions under this Pian were met, detals of which have been set out in prewious reports of the Committee No options were
1ssued at a discount under this plan All outstanding options under this pian are set out on page 17

Benefits

The Executive Directors are eligible to participate in defined contribution pension schemes As fully disclosed in last year's report, with
effect from | January 2012, the employer contribution was increased from 15% to 17 5% for Phil Willams and remained at 15% for
Gary Young As also previously disclosed the Committee agreed that with effect from ! January 2012, a salary supplement of 25%

of basic salary would be payable to Alan Heame in lieu of pension contributions This payment does nat rank for the purposes of
calculating payments under the Bonus Banking Plan or other employee benefits inked to salary

Executive Directors can afso partictpate in the all-employee HMRC Share Incentive Plan (SIP) The SIP gives employees the
opportunity 1o purchase up to £1,500 of shares a year with the Company providing one addtional matching share for every employee
purchased share In addition they receve the following benefits
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B healthcare,

m  lfe assurance and dependents’ pensions,

8 disabilty schemes, and

® company car or car allowance

Shareholding Guideline

The Committee operates a systemn of shareholding gu:delines to encourage fong-term share ownership by the Executive Directors

The Committee befieves this forms a stable platform on which to buld a responsible relationship between shareholders, the
Executives and the Company It 1s intended that the Executives will be able to build up their shareholding by therr participation in the
Company's incentive plans The committee considers that deferred shares held through the RPS Group Plc Bonus Banking Plan and
the plan that will replace it, should count for the purposes of meeting these guidelines

The current gurdelines are as detaled below

Recommended shareholding

Name requirgment s percentage of salary
Alan Heame 150%
Gary Young 100%
Phil Williams 100%

Service contracts
ft remains the Company's policy that Executive Directors should have rolling service contracts terminatle on no more than one year's
notice served by the Company or the Director

Details of the Executive Directors’ service contracts are shown below

Nobee Penod

Name Date of Contract (months)
Alan Hearne February 1997 12

Phil Willams November 2005 12

Gary Young September 2000 12

The only event on the occurrence of which the Company 1s liable to make a payment to any of the Executive Directors 15 cessation
of employment. The Company's policy on termination payments 15 net to make payments beyond s contractual obligations, including
any payment in respect of notice to which a Director 1s entitled after mitigation 15 considered None of the Directors' contracts
provide for extended notice penods or compensation in the event of a change of contral None of the Directors' contracts provide
for lquidated damages

MNon-Executive Directors

The fees pad to the Non-Executive Directors are determined by the Board and am to be competitive with other fully listed companies
of equivalent size and complesaty The Chairman of the Company receves a higher fee than the other Nen-Executive Directors whilst
Committee Chairmen and the Senicr Independent Director recewe an addtional payment, The fees paid to the Chairman and the Non-
Executive Directors are detaled on page 32

Non-Executive Directors are appointed for three years term which may be renewed by mutual agreement In common with the
Executve Directors ali Non-Executives are subject to annual re-election by sharehalders

Detalls of the terms of appointment of the serving Non-Executve Directors are set cut in the table below

Unexpired term of contract as

MName Initial Contract date at 3| Dec 20132 (menths)
Brack Land September 1997 Annual Reviewy
John Bennett June 2006 31
Louse Charlton May 2008 i7
Robert Miller-Bakewell May 2010 5%
Tracey Graham August 201 | 20

*Has agreed to serve a second three year term
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Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to participate in the pension plan or the performance based pay schemes including annual bonus
and share schemes Terms and condiions of appeintment of Non-Executive Directors are avalable for nspection by any person at the
Company's registered office and at the Annual General Meeting

TSR Graph

The graph shows a companson of the total shareholder return frem the Company's shares for each of the last five financial years
aganst the total sharehelder return for the companies comprising the FTSE All Share and the FTSE All Share Support Services
sector The Remuneration Committee has selected these benchmarks as they prowide a goed indication of the Company's

general performance

Total shareholder return from 1st January 2008
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Audited Information

Directors’ emoluments and compensation
The table below sets out detalls of the emoluments and compensation received dunng the year by each Director

Bask Emoluments exchxding pensions Pension {paxs and prowded)
salary Borus Fees Benefts 2012 Wi w012 2041
£000s £0005 £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Executive
Alan Hearne 446 685 - 19 1,154 777 Il 6
Gary Young 232 348 - 16 596 319 35 34
Phil Willams 340 491 - |6 847 554 59 48
Peter Dowen* - - - - - 182 - 26
Non-Executive:
Brook Land - - 110 — 110 101 - -
Jehn Bennett - - 50 - 50 40 - -
Louise Charlton - - 35 - 35 32 - -
Robert Miller-Bakewell - - 41 - 41 36 - -
Tracey Graham** - - 43 - 43 12
Roger Bevhin* - - - 13 - -
Karen McPherson* - — — 15 - -
Total 2012 1,018 1,528 279 51 2,876 - 205 -
Total 201 | |,145 628 249 59 - 2081 - 124

The total Directors emoluments were £2,876000 (2011 £2,081,000) excluding pension contnbutions In additon Employers National Insurance Contnbuticn
paid in respect of these emotuments were £379,000 (2011 £250 000)

* Peter Dowen, Roger Deviin and Karen McPherson ceased to be directors duning 204 | and the emecluments shown for that year represent those paid for a part
of that year up to date of retirement.

** Tracey Graham was appointed 1o the Board dunng 201 | and emolurments shown for that year represent those paid for a part of the year from date
of appointment.

Share awards
The tables on pages 17 and |8 set out detar's of the share options and LTIPs held by each Director during the year

The Company operates its share schemes within the dilution himits specified by the AB|

Pensions

The executive directors participate in Group Money Purchase (defined contaibution) pension plans As explamed above Alan Hearne 1s
in receipt of a salary supplement in ieu of employer pension contnbutions this payment being tncluded under the Pension column in
the table above

An Ordinary Resolution to approve this report will be proposed at the Company's Annual General Meeting on 3 May 2013

Signed on behalf of the Board
Tracey Graham

Charr of the Remuneration Committee
28 February 2013
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Report of the Independent Auditor

To the members of RPS Group Plc

We have audited the financial statements of RPS Group PLC (registered number 02087786) for the year ended 31 December 2012
which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income, the Consolidated
Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Parent Company Balance
Sheet and the related notes | to 32 to the consohdated financial statements and | to |3 to the parent company financial statements
The financal reporting framework that has been appled in the preparation of the Group Financial Statements 1s applicable law and
Intermational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union The financial reporting framework that has been
appled in the preparation of the parent company financial statements 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a bady, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part |6 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members thase matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financral

staterents and for being sabsfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility 15 to audit and express an opinion on the

group financial statements in accordance with applicable law and Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards !
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit nvolves obtaining ewdence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable

assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an

assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the group's and the parent company's circumstances and have been

consistently appled and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estirnates made by the directors and the

overall presentation of the financial statements In addiion, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report

to identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements if we become aware of any apparent matenal misstaterents |
or incensistencies we consider the implications for our report ,

Opinion on financial statements
In our opimian

B the financial statements gve a true ang far view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company's affairs as at 3| December
2012 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended, ’

the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

the parent company financial staterments have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, and

B the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and as regards the
group financial ststements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

B the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Comparies Act
2006, and

W the informaton given in the Directors’ Repart for the finanoal year for which the finanaial statements are prepared 1s consistent
with the financial statements

rpsgroup.com 33




Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following
Under the Comparies Act 2006 we are required to report to you of in our opinion

M adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or retums adequate for our audit have not been
recewved from branches not visited by us, or

® the parent company financia! statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records or returns, or

®  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration speafied by law are not made, or

B we have not recewved all the information and explanations we require for our audit
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

® the directors’ statement, set out on page 18, in relation to going concern, and

B the part of the Corporate Governance Staternent relating to the company's comphance with the nine provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code specified for our review and

| certan elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on directors remuneration

’\JD\Ms C Mm'd
john Clennett FCA (Sentor statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Delortte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Reading United Kingdom '

28 February 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement

Accounts

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec 31 Dec

£000s Note 2012 2011
Revenue 3 555863 528710
Recharged expenses 3 (77.028) (75981)
Fee income 3 478,835 452,729
Operating profit before amortisation of acquired intangibles 1{g),3.45 62069 53,045
and transaction related costs
Amortisation of acqured intangibles and transaction related costs 1{g)4 (19.925) (10361}
QOperating profit 42,144 42,684
Finance costs 6 (2.128) (2.541)
Finance income 6 158 308
Profit before tax, amortisatien of acquired intangibles 60099 50812
and transaction related costs
Profit before tax 40,174 40,451
Tax expense 9 (14.263) (11,340}
Profit for the year attnbutable to equity holders of the parent 25911 29111
Basic earmings per share (pence) 10 1194 1349
Duluted earmings per share (pence) 0 I187 1340
Adjusted basic eamings per share (pence) 10 19 48 1668
Adjusted diluted earmings per share (pence} 10 19 36 1656
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended Year ended

31 Dec 31 Dec

£000s 2012 2011
Profit for the year 25911 2901}
Exchange differences (5,545) @l
Total recogrised comprehensive ncome for the year
attnbutable to equity holders of the parent 20,366 28,300

The notes on pages 39 to 71 formn part of these financial statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at As at
31 Dec 3! Dec
£000s Note 2012 2011
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets I 328440 329,112
Property, plant and equipment 12 30,632 30070
Investments — 41
359,072 355 223
Current assets
Trade and other recewables 14 159,381 171,751
Cash at bank 14,804 25,989
174,185 197740
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Borrowings 16 748 2959
Deferred consideration I8 7842 10,327
Trade and other payables i5 101921 109 496
Corporation tax labiities 3582 3331
Prowvisions 19 2,633 3903
116726 130016
Net current assets 57459 67724
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 16 27.557 46 554
Deferred consideration 18 3543 -
Other payables |, 745 | 665
Deferred tax tiabiity 20 8436 11,594
Provisions 19 1,436 2684
42,717 62,497
Net assets 373814 364450
Equity
Share capital 21 6,587 6544
Share premium 106,198 103717
Other reserves 22 36,070 43,299
Retained eamings 224,959 20,890
Total sharehoiders equity 373814 364 450

These financial statements were approved and authonsed for issue by the Board on 28 February 2013

The notes on pages 39 to 7| form part of these financial staterments
Dr Alan Hearne, Director

Gary Young, Director

On behalf of the Board of RPS Group Pic
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Accounts

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec 31 Dec

£.000s Note 2012 2011*
Adusted cash generated from operations 26 76,045 71,053
Deferred consideration treated as remuneration (9.969) (3,743}
Cash generated from operations 66,076 67310
Interest paid (2,204) {2,373}
Interest received 158 308
Income taxes paid (18.162) (12,781}
Net cash from operating activities 45 868 52464
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of subsidianes net of cash acquired (9,774) (1709%)
Deferred consideration (4,130 {5084}
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (9.909) (9.024)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 713 362
Proceeds from disposal of business 298 -
Dividends receved - 256
Net cash used in investing actvities (22.802) {30,580}
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from 1ssue of share capital 240 179
Purchase of own shares (400) (356}
(Proceeds from) / repayments of bank borrowings (17409) 2222
Payment of finance fease labiltes (1,350) (1L410)
Dwvidends paid 23 (13.007) (11233}
Payment of pre-acquisiton dividend (399) (402)
Net cash used n financing actrvities (32.325) (1 1000}
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (9.259) 10,884
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 24,458 13933
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations (395) (35%)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 26 14,804 24,458
Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash at bank 14,804 25989
Bank overdraft - (15310
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 26 14,804 24,458

* See note |a

The notes on pages 39 to 71 form part of these financal statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Share Share Retaned Otrer Total
£000s capital premium eamings reserves equity
At January 2011 6516 101,94] 190,955 45,581 344,993
Total comprehensive income - - 29,011 @in 28,300
Issue of new ordinary shares 28 1776 (509) {1,115} 180
Purchase of own shares - - - (356) (356)
Share based payment expense - - 2431 - 2431
Tax recognised directly in equity - - 135 - i35
Dividends paid - - (11233} — {11.233)
At 3| December 2011 6544 103717 210890 43,299 364,450
Total comprehensive income - - 25911 (5.545) 20,366
Issue of new ordinary shares 43 2481 (1 000) (1.284) 240
Purchase of own shares - - - {400) (4C00)
Share based payment expense - - 2070 - 2070
Tax recognised directly in equity - - 95 - 95
Dividends paid — - {13.007) - {13,007)
At 3| Decernber 2012 6,587 t06,198 224,959 36,070 373814

An analysis of other reserves 1s prowided In note 22 and detals of dividends paid are provided in note 23

The notes on pages 3% to 71 form part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

. Significant accounting policies

RPS Group Plc (the * Company™} 1s a company domicled in England The cansolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2012 compnse the Company and its subsidianes (together referred to as the "Group™)

The consolidated financial statements were authonsed for issuance on 28 February 2013

(a) Basis of preparation

The Group has prepared s annual financial statements in accordance with Internavenal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
endorsed by the European Union and implemented in the UK. The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, rounded to
the nearest thousand

No new or revised standards or interpretations have been adopted in the current year

Restatement

As reparted in the Intenm Results for the six months ended 30 fune 2012 the consolidated cash flow staternent for the year ended
3+ December 2011 has been restated so that deferred consideration treated as remuneration 15 included within cash generated from
operating activities rather than cash flows from investing actvities Otherwise these financral statemnents have been prepared using
accounting policies set out in the Report and Accounts 201 |

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to both penods presented in these consolidated financial
statements

(b) Basis of consolidation

Where the company has the power, either directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating pelicies of another entity or
business so as to obtain benefits from 1ts activities, it 15 classified as a subsidiary The consolidated financial statements present the
results of the company and its subsidianes as if they formed a single entity Intercompany transactions and balances between group
companies are therefore eliminatad in full The consolidated finanaal statements incorporate the results of business combinations using
the purchase method In the Consclidated Balance Sheet, the acquiree s identifiable assets, habilities and contingent liabihties are nvtially
recogrised at therr fair values at the acquission date The resufts of acquired operations are included n the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the date on which control s obtained They are deconsolidated fram the date control ceases

{c) Revenue

Revenue s stated net of sales tax Revenue 15 recognised only when the outcome of a transaction can be measured reliably and 1 15
probable that economic benefits will fiow to the Group

1 Fees [ expenses

Revenue s classified into Fee revenue and Expense revenue Fee revenue represents the Group's personnel subcontractor and
equipment time and expertise sold to clients Expense revenue s the recharge of costs inaidental to fulfiling the Group’s contracts, for
example mileage fights, subsistence and accommodation

# Time and matenials
In the case of tme and rmatenals projects, revenue represents the far value of services prowded using tme spent at agreed rates as
the basis

1 Fixed price

In the case of fixed pnce contracts, revenue 15 recognised in proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at the balance
sheet date measured by reference to the milestones achieved or cost incurred as a proportion of the total forecast cost No revenue
is recognised If there are significant uncertainties regarding the recovery of the consideration due or associated costs An expected Joss
on a contract s recognised immediately in the income statement

v Tustion
Tuition fees in respect of courses run by RPS are recognised over the penod of instruction

v Agency agreements

The Group enters into certain agreements with clients where 1t manages chent expenditure as an agent It 1s obliged to purchase third
party services and recharges those costs, plus a management fee, to the client. In these cases only the management fee 1s recognised as
revenue Recewnvables, payables and cash related to these transactions are included in the consolidated balance sheet.
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1. Significant accounting pohcies continued

Accrued revenue 15 booked as a recevable in the consolidated balance sheet when the amount of revenue recognised on a contract
exceeds the amount invoiced Where the amount invoiced exceeds the amount of revenue recognised, the difference 1s booked as a
payable on the balance sheet in deferred income

(d) Deferred consideration

Deferred consideration anses when settiement of all or part of the cost of a business combination falls due after the date the
acquisivon was completed

+ IFRS 3 (2004)

At the date of acquisition, deferred consideration 15 stated at the far value of the total consideration cutstanding In these cases
all deferred consideration has been treated as part of the cost of investment At each balance sheet date deferred consideration
compnises the far value of the remaining deferred consideration valued at acquisition

it IFRS 3 (2008)

Where the payment of deferred consideration (s not contingent upon continuing employment of the vendors by the Group, deferred
consideration 1s treated in the same way as under IFRS 3 (2004)

Where the payment of deferred consideration 1s contingent upon the continuing employment of vendors by the Group, 1t 1s treated as

a remuneration expense and accounted for as an employment benefit under IAS 19 A charge s made through the consolidated income
statement as a cost of employment The cost assocated with each payment is accnred over the penad it 1s eamed At each balance sheet
date the contingent deferred consideration balance compnses the accrual for unsettled remuneration which has been expensed to the
balance sheet date

(e) Intangible assets

1t Goodwilt

All business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method Goodwill has been recognised on acquisiions of
subsidianes and the business, assets and liabilities of partnerships Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of the
acquisition and the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired

Goodwill 1s stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses Goodwill 1s allocated to groups of cash-generating units and 15
tested annually for impairment

n Negatve Goodwill

Negative goodwill anses where the purchase pnce of acquisitions for accounting purposes 1s less than the farr value of the net assets
acquired and 15 immediately credited to the consolidated income statement in accordance with IFRS 3 (2008)

ut Other intangible assets

Intangible assets other than goodwill that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
mpairment losses

Intangble assets identified in a business combination are capitalised at far value at the date of acquisiion if they are separable from
the acquired entity or give nse to other contractual or legal nghts The far values ascnbed to such intangibles are arrved at by wsing
appropnate valuation techriques

Expenditure on intemally generated goodwill and brands 1s recognised in iIncome as an expense as incurred
v Amorusation

Amartisation 15 charged to profit or loss on a strarght-kne basis from the date that the intangible assets are avaltable for use over their
estimated useful ives unless such lives are indefinte The estimated useful hves of the Group's intangible assets are as follows

Customer relationships 3 to 15 years
Trade names ) to 5 years
Order backlog I to 4 years
Non compete agreements 3 years
Software O years
Intellectual property rghts 10 years
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(N Impairment of non financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's non financial assets other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there 15 any indication of impairment If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount s estimated

For goodwill the recoverable amount is estimated at each annual balance sheet date
An impairment loss 15 recogrised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount
Impairment losses are recogrised in the iIncome statement unless the asset 1s recorded at a revalued amount in which case 1t 15 treated
as a revaluation decrease to the extent that a surplus has previously been recorded

impairment losses recogrised n respect of cash generating units are allacated first to reduce the carrying value of goodwill allocated to
the cash generating unit and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro-rata basis

1 Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount 15 the greater of the net seling price and value in use In assessing value In use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted 1o therr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the tme value of
money and the nsks specific to the asset

un Reversals of imparment

An imparment loss in respect of goodwill 5 not reversed In respect of other assets, an imparrment loss 1s reversed If there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount An impairment loss 15 reversed only to the extent that the assets
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of deprecation or amortisation, if no
imparrment loss had been recognised

(g) Non statutory performance measures

The Board has disclosed four non statutory performance measures as part of the Consolidated Income Statement These are
Operating profit before amortisation of acquired intangbles and transaction related costs™ “Profit before tax, amortisation of acquired
intangibles and transaction related costs” “Adjusted basic eamings per share” and Adjusted diluted eamings per share”

The Board considers these to be more meaningful measures of business performance than the statutory measures *'Operating profit’
“Profit before tax”, "Basic earnings per share” and Diuted eamings per share’

The Board has shown in note 3 segment profit and underlying profit

“Segment profit’ 15 defined as profit before interest, tax, amortisation of acguired intangibles and transaction related costs
“Undertying profit” 1s defined as segment profit before reorganisation costs

In 2011 the Group reported segment profit after amortisation of acquired intangbles and transaction related costs In 2012 1t has

chosen not to as this measure 1s not reported to the Group's CODM

t Amortisation of acquired intangibles and transaction related costs (note 4}

This classification of income and expense compnises amortisation of acquired intangibles {see note | (e) ), deferred consideration
payments that are contingent on continuing employment and are treated as remuneration (see note | (d) ), negative goodwill
that has been credited to the income statement (see note | {e) 1), gan on revaluation to far value of nvestment in associate upon
acquisition of all outstanding share capital (note 28) and third party transaction related costs

1 Reorgamisation costs
Ths classification of inceme and expense comprises costs ansing as a consequence of reorganisation including redundancy costs profit
or lass on disposal of plant, property and equipment, the costs of consoiidating office space and rebranding costs

An explanation of adjusted earning per share 15 given in note 10

(h) Key accounting estimates and judgements
The Group considers that the accounting policies abave all require judgement to be exercised
Judgements that could have @ matenai effect on the Group's financral statements include the following

| Revenue recognition — judgement 1s required to :dentify when it 1s appropnate to recogruse revenue on contracts,
particularly with respect to fixed pnce contracts

2 Acquisiion accounting — ;udgements are made with respect to the farr value of the net assets acquired and wath respect to
the far value of the consideration transferred Market rates of interest are used to discount expected cash flows to denve
the far value of the nvestment See note 28 for detail of the acquision completed in 2012
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Notes to the Consohdated Financial Statements continued

3 Impairment of nen-financial assets — when impairment reviews are undertaken, judgements are made with respect to the
discount rates applicable to the Group's cash generating units, along with the expected cash flows of those cash generating
units and the growth rates appled to them Detall of the results of the impairment reviews performed in 2012 can be
found in note || along with the judgements applied

4 Impairment of financial assets — management considers in detall when 1t 1s approprate to recognise impaiment reserves
against specific financial assets This judgement will take inta account our previous expenence with the cient in question,
their particular arcumstances and the markets that they work in Details of the imparment reserves held for financal assets
can be found in note {4

2. Other accounting policies
(a) Foreign currency

1 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in fareign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated to pounds steding at the foreign exchange rate
ruling at that date Foreign exchange differences ansing on transiation are recognised in income

# Financial staternents of foreign eperations

The assets and liabiltes of foreign operations, Including goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on consolidation, are tranglated

to pounds sterling at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are
translated to pounds stering at rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange
differences ansing on retranslation are recognised directly in the translation reserve

m Net mvestment in foreign operauons
Exchange differences ansing from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations are taken to the translation reserve They
are recycled and taken to income upon disposat of the operation

tv Foreign currency forward contracts

Foreign currency forward contracts are initally recogrised at nil value, being pnced-at-the-money at ongination Subsequently they are
measured at far value {determined by price changes in the underlying forward rate, the interest rate, the time to expiration of the
contract and the amount of foreign currency specafied In the contract) Changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement
as they arise

{b) Property, plant and equipment

t Owned assets
ftems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation (see below) and impairment losses (see
accountng policy | {f) above)

1 Leased assets

Leases which contain terms whereby the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased
item are classified as finance leases Assets acquired under a finance lease are capitalised at the inception of the lease at far value of
the leased assets, or if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments

Obligations under finance leases are included n habilities net of finance costs allocated to future penaods

All other leases are classified as operating leases and are not capitalised

i Subsequent costs

The Group recognises In the carrying amount of an itern of property plant and equipment the cost of replacing part of such an tem
when that cost 1s iIncurred if it 15 probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably All other costs are recognised in the income statement as incurred

v Depreciation
Deprecation 15 charged to income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful ives of each part of an rtem of property plant and
equipment The estimated useful lives are as follows
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Freehold buildings 50 years
Alterations to leasehald premises Life of lease
Motor vehucles 4 years
Fixtures, fittings, IT and equipment 3 to B years

{c) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recogrised at cost and carmed at cost less mparment losses Trade and other recenvables are
subject to iImpaiment tests whenever events or changes in crcumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable
Impairment losses are taken to the income statement as incurred

(d) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank compnses cash balances and call deposits with an onginal matunty of three months or less Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management are included as a companent of cash and cash
equivalents for the purposes of the consaolidated cash flow statement

(e) Employee benefits

1 Defined contribution plans
Obligations for contnbutions to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recogmised as an expense in the Income statement
as incurred

# Share-based payments
The Group operates share based payment arrangements with employees The farr value of equity settled awards for share based
payments 1s determined at grant and expensed straight line over the penod from grant to the date of earlest unconditional exercise

The Group has calculated the fair market value of optiens using a binomial model and for whole share awards the far value has been
based cn the market value of the shares at the date of grant adjusted to take into account some of the terms and conditions upon
which the shares were granted

Those fair values were charged to the mcome statement over the relevant vesting penod adjusted to reflect actual and expected
vesting tevels

Since 2004 the Group has incentivised and motivated employees through the grant of conditional share awards under the Long Term
Incentive Plan (" LTIP”) and Bonus Banking Plan (BBP) for Executive Directors and other senior directors, the Performance Share

Plan {' PSP"), for senior managers and staff, and the Share Incentrve Plan { SIP™), avalable to staff Under these arrangements shares
are grantec at no cost to the employee The release of shares granted under the LTIP, BBP and PSP are subject to the satisfaction

of corporate performance conditions and continuity of employment prowisions Shareholder approval has lapsed for the LTIP and
therefore no further grants will be made under this plan The release of shares under the SIP are subject to continurty of employment
provisIons

1t Accrued holiday pay |
Prowision 15 made at each balance sheet date for holidays accrued but not taken, to the extent that they may be carmed farward
calculated at the salary of the relevant employee at that date

(f) Provisions

A provision 1s recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event
and it 1s probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation If the effect 1s matenal, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the tme value
of money and, when appropnate the nisks speafic to the liability ’

A prowision for onerous contracts s recognised when the expecied benefits to be denved by the Group from a contract are lower
than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract

(g) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are stated at cost Trade payables with a short useful Iife are not discounted

(h) Borrowings

Bank overdrafts and interest bearing loans are inivally measured at cost Borrowings are not discounted
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

2. Other accounting policies continued

(i) Reserves

The description and purpese of the Group's reserves are as follows

Share premium Premium on shares 1ssued in excess of nominal value, other than on shares 1ssued in respect of acquisitions
when merger rehef 1s taken

Merger reserve Premium on shares 1ssued In respect of acquisitions when merger relief s taken

Employee trust Own shares held by the $IP and ESOP trusts

Translation reserve Cumufative gains and losses ansing on retranslating the net assets of overseas operations into sterling

Retained eamings Cumulative net gains and losses recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity

{j) Expenses

1 Operating lease payments
Payments made under operating leases are recognised In the Income statement on a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease
Lease incentives receved are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense

u# Finance lease payments

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reductjon of the outstanding hiability The finance
charge 15 allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constanttgenodm rate of interest on the remaning balance
of the hability

(k) Income tax

Income tax on the income for the penods presented compnses current and deferred tax Income tax s recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in equity, In which case & 1s recognised in equity

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the
balance sheet date, and any adjustment 1o tax payable 1n respect of previous years

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and habilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes The following temporary
differences are not prowided for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the intial recogniion of assets or habilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit and the differences relating to investments in subsidianes to the extent that they will probably
not reverse in the foreseeable future In accordance with 1AS12, deferred tax 1s taken directly to equrty to the extent that the intnnsic
value of the outstanding share awards (based on the closing share pnce) 15 greater than the share based payment expense already
charged to the income statement The amocunt of deferred tax prowided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of assets and habilities, using tax rates enacted or substantvely enacted at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset is recognised only 1o the extent that it 1s probabie that future taxable profits will be avallable against which the

asset can be utihsed Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that the related tax benefit will
be realised

(I) Dividends
Dividends are recognised when they become legally payabte In the case of intenm dividends to equrty shareholders, this 1s when they
are paid In the case of final dividends, this s when approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting

{(m) Employee Share Ownership Plan (ESOP)

As the Company Is deemed to have control of its ESOP trust, it 1s treated as a subsidiary and consolidated for the purpose of the
Group accounts The ESOP's assets (other than investments in the Company's shares), liabiliies, income and expenses are included on
a ine-by-line basis in the Group financial statements The ESOP's investment in the Company's shares is deducted from shareholders
funds in the Group balance sheet as If they were treasury shares
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(n) Accounting standards issued but not adopted

At the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the following standards and relevant interpretations, which have not been
applied in these financial statements, were In sssue but not yet effective (and some of which were pending endorsement by the EU)

®  Amendments to [AS |9 “Employee benefits” ®m |AS | (amended) “Presentation of ttems in Other
s IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments Classification and measurement” Comprehensive Income™
- effective for accounting penods beginning on or after m IFRIC 20 Stnpping Costs n the Production Phase of a
| January 2015 Surface Mine”
B IAS [2 Income Taxes — Limited Scope Amendment” ® IFRS | {amended) ' First-tirme Adoption of IFRS" — Severe
B IFRS 10 ' Consolidated Financial Staterents” Hypennflation Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters
and Government Loans
m IFRS |1 joint Arrangements”
Annual improvernents to FRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
m IFRS 12 “Ousclosure of Interest in Other Entities™
IAS 32 (amended) “Offsetting Financial Assets and
m IFRS |3 "Fair Value Measurement” Finarcal Latdibes”
B IAS 27 (amendec) Separate Financial Statements” | IFRS 7 amended) * Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
m |AS 28 (amended) "Investments in Associates and and Financial Liabilities™
Jont Ventures” B IFRS 10 (amended) IFRS 12 (amended) and |AS 27

{amended) — * Investment Entites”

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future peniods will not have a matenal impact on
the financial statements of the Group

3. Business and geographical segments

Segrment information s presented in the financial statements in respect of the Group’s business segments, as reported to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker The business segment reporting format reflects the Group s management and internai reporting structure

Inter-segment pricing is determined on an am'’s length basis Segment results include tems directly attnbutable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis

Business segments

The business segments of the Group are as follows

Built and Natural Emvronment (*BNE") - consultancy services to many aspects of the property and infrastructure development

and management sectors These include environmental assessment, the management of water resources, health and safety, risk
management, town and country planning building, landscape and urban design, surveying and transport planning Censulting services are
provided on a regional basis in Europe and Australia Asia Pacfic ("AAP™)

Energy - the provision of integrated technical, commeraial ang project management support and training in the fields of geoscience,

engineenng and heaith, safety and environment on a global basis to the energy sector

Central costs - certan central costs are not allocated to the segments because either they predominently relate to the running of the
Group Head Office function or could only be allocated to the segments on an arbitrary basss, such costs include the remuneration and
support costs of the main board and the costs of the Group Finance and marketing functions These costs are included in the category
unallocated expenses”

‘Segment profit” and ‘Underlying profit” are defined in note 1(g)
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Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements continued

3. Business and geographical segments continued

Segment results for the year ended 315t December 2012

Recharged Intersegment External
£000s Fees expenses revenue revenue
Built and Natural Environment

Europe 157,200 21,433 (+.301) 177,332
AAP 28,300 19,827 (786} 117,341
Intra BNE eliminations (193) (41) 234 -
Total BNE 255,307 41219 {1,853} 294673
Energy 225,875 36017 (702) 261,190
Group eliminations (2.347) {208) 2,555 -
Total 478,835 77,028 — 555 863

Undertying Reorganisation Segment
£000s profit costs profit
Built and Natural Environment

Europe 18,874 (754) 18120
AAP 12,974 (320) 12,054
Total BNE 31,848 {1,674) 30,174
Energy 39,709 {72) 39 637
Total 71,557 {1.746) 69.811
Segment results for the year ended 315t Decernber 2011

Recharged Intersegment External
Fees expenses revenue revenue

Built and MNatural Environment
Europe 178215 24,548 (1,935) 200828
AAP 90,992 15451 (945) 105,498
Intra BNE eliminations - (89) - 89 -
Total BNE 269118 39,999 (2791) 306326
Energy 186,117 36,619 (352 222384
Group elminations {2,506) (637) 3143 -
Total 452,729 75981 — 528710
Underlying Reorganisation Segment
£000s profit costs profit

Built and Natural Environment
Eurcpe 18,002 (1,572} 16430
AAP 11017 (103} 10214
Total BNE 29019 (1.675) 27344
Energy 32,099 77 32022
Total 61,118 (1.752) 59,366
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Accounts

Year ended Year ended

31 Dec 31 Cec

£000s 2012 20H
Revenue 555863 528710
Recharged expenses (77.028) (75,981
Fees 478,835 452,729
Undertying profit 71.557 61,118
Reorganisation costs {1.746) (1.752)
Segment profit 69,811 59.366
Unallocated expenses (7.742) (6.321)
Operating profit before amortisation of acquired intangibles and transactron related costs 62.069 53,045
Armnortisation of acquired intangibles and transaction related costs (19.925) (103s1)
Operating profit 42,144 42,684
Finance costs {1.370) (2233)
Profit before tax 40,174 40,451

Carrying amount of

segment assets

Segment depreciation

2nd amortisation

As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
£000s 2012 2011 2012 2011
Built and Natural Environment
Europe 226 861 237,335 3.607 3927
AAP 124,908 120,029 7978 10,297
Total BNE 351,769 357,364 11,585 14,224
Energy 179,163 195,362 7217 4109
Unallocated 2325 4,237 784 538
Group total 533,257 556,963 19.586 18871
The table below shows revenue and fees to extermnal customers based upon the country from which biling took place
Revenue Fees
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 3t Dec
£000s 2012 2011 2012 2001
UK 238,481 234 344 204436 198,884
Australa 144,753 129,501 123,782 110,561
USA 71,506 46 573 63.736 41993
Canada 31769 38,285 28,658 32454
Ireland 30917 44,365 24 607 37050
Netheriands 28,159 28092 24,483 24393
Other 9,278 7.550 9,133 7394
Total 555,863 528,710 478,835 452729

Carrying amount of
non current segment assets

As at As at

31 Dec 31 Dec

£000s 2012 2011
UK 174,829 170,190
Australia 96,433 86967
Usa 26,419 30618
Canada 4,434 5097
Ireland 39064 48,942
Netherlands 17.832 17322
Other 6l 87
Total 359,072 359,223
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

4. Amortisation of acquired intangibles and transaction related costs

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec 31 Dec
£000s 2012 2011
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 10636 10,839
Contingent deferred consideration treated as remuneration 8,593 9256
Negative goodwill {see note 28) (266) (9.067)
Transaction costs 827 823
Loss on disposal of business 135 -
Revaluation of investment in associate — (1.490y
19,925 10,361
5. Operating profit - by nature of expense
Year ended Year ended
3| Dec 31 Dec
£000s 2012 2001
Revenue 555,863 528,710
Staff costs (217.932) (216,206)
Subconsuttants costs (121,354) (105,222}
Other employment related costs (17.444) (17.896)
Deprecation of owned assets (8,205) (7.281)
Depreciation of assets held under finance leases (745) (751)
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 138 39
Operating lease rentals payabie - property (11,998) (12,258)
Qperating lease rentals payable - equipment and motor vehicles (4218) (4.312)
Travel costs (14,041) (15,125}
Office costs (18,25%) {19 182)
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (10.636) (10,839)
Other transaction related costs {9,289 (30)
Other costs {79.736) (76,963)
Operating profit 42,144 42 684
6. Net financing costs
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec 31 Dec
£000s 2012 2011
Finance costs
Interest on loans, overdraft and finance leases {1.583) {1,710}
Interest imputed on deferred consideration (28) {190)
Interest payable on deferred consideration (517) (641)
(2,128) (2541
Finance income
Deposit interest receivable 158 308
Net financing costs {1.370) (2,233)
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7. Employee benefit expense

Accounts

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec 31 Dec
£000s 2012 2011
Wages and salanes 187,555 186,943
Socal secunty costs 7536 16927
Pension costs - defined contnbution plans t0.771 9905
Share based payment expense - eguity settled 2070 2431
217932 216,206

Average number of employees (including Executive Directors) was
Fee earming staff 3,583 3,799
Support stafl 924 887
4,507 4 686

In addition to statutory staff costs, contingent deferred consideration treated as remuneration amounts to £8,593.000

(2011 £9,256,000)

The Group considers the Directors to be the key management personnel and detalls of directors’ remuneration are included in the
Remuneration Report from page 26 The share based payment charge in respect of key management personnel was £221,000

(2011 £325.000)

8. Auditors’ remuneration

During the year, the Group (iIncluding 1ts overseas subsidianes) obtaned the following services from the Group’s audrtors (2012

Delortte, 201 | Emst & Young) at costs as detaled below

‘Year ended Year ended

31 Dec 31 Dec

£000s 2012 201}
Statutory audit of the Company's annual accounts 45 33
Statutory audit of the Group's subsidianes 289 297
Total audit fees 334 330
Intenm review 25 20
Total assurance services 359 350
Tax comphance services 68 75
Tax advisory services 200 -
Services In relation to taxation 268 75
Totaj fees 627 425
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2. Income taxes

Analysis of tax expense/{credit) in the income statement for the year

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec 31 Dec
£000s 2012 2011
Current tax
UK Corporation tax 4,596 4,899
Overseas tax 13,133 2019
Adjustments in respect of prior years 618 (715)
18,347 13203
Deferred tax
Onrgination and reversal of timing differences (2.932) {}.866)
Effect of change n tax rate (21} {176)
Adjustments in respect of prior years {1131} 179
(4.084) (1.863)
Total tax charge to income for the year 14,263 11,340
Analysis of tax credits in equity for the year
Current tax - (18
Deferred tax (95) (117
Total tax credrt to equity for the year {95} (135)

The effective tax rate for the year on profit before tax s 355% (2011 280%) The effective tax rate for the year on profit before tax
amartisation of acquired intangibles and transaction related costs 18 29 7% (2011 28 7%) as chawn n the table below

Year ended Year ended
3| Dec 31 Dec
£000s 2012 2011
Total tax expense n Income Statement 14,263 11,340
Add back.
Tax on amortisation of acquired intangibles and transaction related costs 3569 3256
Adjusted tax charge on the profit for the year 17,832 14,596
Profit before tax, amorusation of acquired intangibles and transaction refated costs 60,099 50812
Adjusted effective tax rate 297% 287%
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The UK rate of corporate tax was reduced from 26% to 24% from | Apnl 2012 The UK tax expense for the group s UK companies
15 24 5% (201 | 265%) representing the weighted average annual corporate tax rate for the full financial year

The actual tax expense for 2012 15 different from 24 5% (2011 265%) of profit before tax for the reasons set out in the
following reconciiation

Year ended Year ended
3 Dec 31 Dec
£000s 2012 201
Profit before tax 40,174 4045}
Tax at the standard rate of 245% (2010 26 5%) 9,843 10,720
Effect of
Non deductible acquisition consideration treated as remuneration 2,105 2,453
Effect of overseas tax rates ) 2339 1,123
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 632 627
Negative goodwill not taxable {(65) (2403)
Effect of change In tax rates (78) (249)
Revaluation of investment not taxable - (395)
Effect of change in Australian tax law - (238)
Adustrments in respect of pnor years (513 {298)
Total tax charge on the profit for the period 14,263 11,340

The UK government has announced a future decrease in the UK corporation tax rate from 24% to 23% from Apnl 2014 This change
has resulted i a deferred tax credit ansing from the reduction in the balance sheet carrying value of deferred tax labiltes to reflect the
anticipated rate of tax at which those labilities are expected to reverse
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Notes to the Consohdated Financial Statements continued

10. Earnings per share

The calculations of basic and diluted earmings per share were based on the profit attributable to ordinary sharehoiders and a weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the related penod as shown in the table below

Year ended Year ended

31 Dec 31 Dec

£000s/000s 2012 2011
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 253511 29,111
Weighted average number of ardinary shares for the purposes of basic eamings per share 216,980 215727
Fffect of employee share schemes 1,313 1,547
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted earrungs per share 218,293 217,274
Basic eamings per share (pence) 1194 1349
Diluted earmings per share (pence} 1187 1340

The directors consider that earnings per share before amortisation of acquired intangble and transaction related costs and, in respect
of 201 |, the effect of the change In Australian tax law provides a more meanngful measure of the Group's performance than statutory
eamnings per share The calculations of adjusted earmings per share were based on the number of shares as above and are shown in
the table below

Year ended Year ended

31 Dec 31 Dec

£000s 2012 2011
Profit attnbutable to ordinary shareholders 25911 29111
Amortisation of acquired intangibles and transaction related costs (note 4) 19,925 10,361
Tax on amortisation of acquired intangibles and transaction related costs (3.569) (3.256)
Change in Australian tax law - (238)
Adjusted profit attnbutable to ordinary shareholders 42,267 35,978
Adjusted basic earmings per share (pence) 1948 1668
Adjusted diluted earnings per share (pence) 1936 1656
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I'1. Intangible assets

Accounts

Intellectual Non
property  Custemer Order Trade compete

£000s nghts relationships backlog names agreements  Software  Goodwill Total
Cost
At | January 2012 2782 67213 6267 2367 561 1,158 285780 366,128
Additions - 2993 839 - - - 12,357 16,189
Reduction due to disposal - - - - - ~ (1135  (1,135)
Reduction in deferred consideration payable - - - - - - (107} {107)
Adjustment to pnor year estimates - - - - - - 232 232
Foreign exchange differences (109) (1729 (152) (45) (13) {(51)  (375%9)  (5858)
At 31 December 2012 2673 68,479 6,954 2,322 548 1,107 293,368 375451
Aggregate amortisation and impairment losses
At | January 2012 285 7,694 5215 1426 156 19 12221 37016
Amortisation 283 8023 1,700 333 184 P13 - 10,636
Foreign exchange differences (% (475) (109) (40) &) (3) — {641)
At 31 December 2042 559 25242 6806 1,713 335 129 12,221 47011
MNet book value at 3t December 2012 2,114 43,237 148 603 213 978 281 147 328440

Intangible asset additions that are recorded in 2012 have been recognised at ther provisional fair values (see note 28)

Acquisitions in 201 | were engnally stated at prowisional values These farr values have now been finalised and no adjustments have

been made to the prior year balance sheet on grounds of immatenality 1n accordance with |AS 8

Intellectual Non
property  Custormer Order Trade  compete

£000s nghts relationships backlog names agreements  Software  Goodwill Total
Cost
At | January 2011 201 44,404 3.094 1,547 - - 291402 340648
Addrtions 2501 22,229 3,105 812 547 1121 3094 33409
Deferred consideration treated as remuneration - - - - - - (7.439) (7.439)
Reduction in deferred consideration payable - - - - - - (334) (334)
Adjustment to pnor year estimates - - - - - - (162) {162)
Foreign exchange dfferences 80 580 68 8 14 37 (781) 6
At 31 December 201 t 2,782 67,213 6,267 2,367 561 I,158 285,780 366,128
Aggregate amortisation and imparment losses
At | January 2014 201 10,554 1,891 I 160 - - 12,221 26027
Amartisation 84 7039 3285 259 153 19 - 10,839
Foreign exchange differences - 101 39 7 3 - - 150
At 31 December 201 | 285 17,694 5215 1,426 136 19 12,221 37016
Net book value at 31 December 201 | 2,497 49519 1,052 241 405 1139 273559 329,112
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I 1. Intangible assets continued

Goodwill
Goodwill acquired in a business combination s allocated at acquisition to the groups of cash generating units (CGUSs) that are expected
to beneft from that business combination The carmying amount of goodwill has been allocated as follows

As at As at

3} Dec 31 Dec

£000s 2012 201t
Built and Matural Environment

UK and Ireland 140,870 142910

Netherlands 9,574 9,723

Europe 150,444 152,633

Australia Asia Pacific 64,220 54060

214664 206,693

Energy 66,483 66,866

281,147 273559

The Group tests annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired Management have
not dentified any imparment tnggenng events in the perod since the last annual review

The determination of whether or not goodwill has been impaired requires an estmate to be made of the value in use of the CGUs to
which goodwill has been allocated

The value n use calculation includes estimates about the future financial performance of the CGUs In all cases the approved budget for
the following financial year forms the basis for the cash flow projections for a CGU The cash flow projections in the four financial years
following the budget year reflect management's expectations of the medium-term operating performance of the CGU and the growth
prospects in the CGU's market Thereafter, a perpetuity 1s apphed to the final year's cash flows

Key assumptions
The key assumptions in the value in use calculations are the discount rates applied the growth rates and margins assumed over the
forecast perod

Discount rate appiied

The discount rate applied to a CGU represents a pre-tax rate that reflects the market assessment of the time value of money at the end
of the reporting period and the risks specific to the CGU The Group bases its estimate for the long term pre-tax discount rate on its
weighted average cost of capital (WACC) The inputs to this calculation are denved from long term market and industry data

The discount rates applied to the CGUSs are in the range [08% to 120% (2011 |1 0% to 130%)

Growth rates

The growth rates applied reflect management's expectations regarding the future performance of the busness These incorporate the
effects of the global recession over the last three years, the expected recavery of the CGUs affected and the past expenence of the
Group as it emerged from previous recessions

The long term growth rate applied to the perpetuity calculations was 2 1% per annum (2011 225% to 24%) reflecting the average long
term growth rates of the economies in which the CGUs are based

Summary of results
Dunng the year, all goodwill was tested for imparment with ne impairment charge resulting (201 | £rul)

In the Directors’ view, the results are most sensitive to the discount rate used and a 1% absclute movement n the value of the discount
rate s reasonably possible If that movement occurred the Group would not recogrise any impairment in the camrying value of the
goodwill n any CGU
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12. Property, plant and equipment

Accounts

Fixtures

Freehold Alterations fitings

land and to leasehold Motor IT and
£600s buldings premises vehicles equipment Total
Cost
At | January 2012 9,071 6,373 3718 55,671 74,833
Addtions 4 1,632 1218 7,089 9943
Disposals (450) (251) (641) {1,652} (2994)
Addrtions through acquisition - - 18 844 862
Foreign exchange differences (329 (156) (115) (861) (1360)
At 31 December 2012 8,356 7.598 4198 61,091 81,283
Depreciation
At | January 2012 2,242 1,822 | 446 39253 44763
Charge for the year 239 1012 816 6,883 8950
Disposals {208) (230) (522) (t.466) (2426)
Foreign exchange differences (44) {50) (48) (494) {636)
At 31 December 2012 2,229 2,554 1,692 44,176 50,651
Net book value at 31 December 2012 6,167 5,044 2506 16915 30,632

At 3| December 2012 the Group held under finance lease contracts alterations to leasehold properties motor vehicles and equipment

with net book values of £7 11,000 £40000 and £262,000 respectively

Fixtures

Freehold Alterations fittings

land and to teasehold Motor IT and
£000s bulldings premises vehicles equipment Total
Cost
At 1 January 2041 9,352 5,300 3023 50,189 67,904
Additions 23 761 1,087 7,187 9058
Disposals - (218) {429) (2,673} (3320)
Additions through acquisition - 353 4 1,042 1399
Transfers (140} |40 - - -
Foreign exchange differences (204) 37 33 74) {208)
At 3| December 201 } 9,071 6,373 3718 55,671 74,833
Depreciation
At | January 201 | 2,089 1,203 1,099 35,406 39797
Charge for the year 194 827 606 6,405 8,032
Drsposals - (213) (271) (2.447) (2931
Foreign exchange differences (41) 5 2 (L (135)
At 31 December 201 | 2242 1822 | 446 39,253 44,763
Net baok value at 31 December 201 | 6,829 455] 2,272 16418 30,070

At 31 December 201 | the Group held under finance lease contracts alterations to leasehold properties, motor vehicles and equipment
with net book values of £894,000, £435,000 and £812 000 respectively
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13. Subsidiaries

A list of the significant subsidianes, including the name, country of incorporation and proportion of ownership interests ts given in Note

5 to the Parent Company's financial statements on page 76

14. Trade and other receivables

As at As at

3] Dec 31 Dec

£000s 2012 2011
Trade recevables 126,920 130,528
Provision for impairment (8.820) (8228)
Trade recevables net F18,100 122,300
Accrued income 35576 45,984
Provision for impairment {5,621) (6496)
Accried income net 29,955 39,488
Prepayments 7503 6590
Other recewvables 3823 3,373
159,381 171,751

All amounts shown under trade and other receivables fall due within one year

The carrying value of trade and other recevables 1s considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to ther short term nature
and the prowvisions for impairment recorded against them The indnidually imparired balances mainly relate to items under discussion

with customers

Certain trade recevables are past due but have not been impaired These relate to customers where we have no history of defauit and

no concerns over therr financal stuation The age of financial assets past due but not impaired is as follows

As at As at

31 Dec 31 Dec

£000s 20142 2001
Not mere than three months 10,535 11,778
Mare than three months 11,341 13,468
21,876 25246
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14, Trade and other receivables continued

Movements in impairment

£000s Trade recevables Accrued income Total
As at | January 2012 8228 6,496 14724
Income statement charge 2,589 2,959 5548
Recewvables written off during the year as uncollecuble (2,159) (3,715) (5874
Additions through acquisitions 51 - 51
Foreign exchange 11 {9 (8)
As at 31 December 2012 8,820 5,621 14,441
As at | January 201 | 6,580 5,996 12,576
income statement charge 3,585 3,191 6776
Recevables wntten off dunng the year as uncollectble (2.477) (2662) {5.139)
Additions through acquisitions 209 - 209
Foreign exchange 331 29 302
As at 31 December 201t 8,228 6,496 14,724

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other recewvables are denominated as follows

31 Dec 31 Dec
£000s 2012 2011
UK Pound Sterling - 56,399 59521
Euro 23,760 28,256
US Dollar 29,697 31336
Canadian Dollar 14,449 14892
Awustrahian Dollar 31797 35607
Other 3,279 2,139

159 381 171,751

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting date 15 the carrying amount of each class of recevable mentioned above

5. Trade and other payables

As at As at

31 Dec 31 Dec

£000s 2012 2011
Trade payables 31,174 31,371
Accruals 30,932 37402
Deferred income 20,386 21,041
Creditors for taxation and social secunty 13,779 14223
Other payables 5.650 5459
101,921 109,496

All amounts shown under trade and other payables fall due for payment within one year The carrying values of trade and other
payables are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short term nature of these labilities
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16. Borrowings

As at As at
31 Dec 31 Dec
£000s 2012 n
Bank loans 27,098 45,705
Bank overdraft - 1,531
Finance lease creditor 1,207 2277
28,305 49513
as at 31 December 2012 as at 3| December 201}

Bank Finance Bank Finance

loans and lease lzans and lease
£000s overdraft crednor Teral overdraft creditor Total

The borrowings are repayable as follows

On demand or In not more than one year 158 390 748 1,728 1,231 2,959
In the second year 70 588 658 45,345 524 45,869
in the third to fifth years mclusve 26870 28 26899 163 22 &85
27.098 1,207 28,305 47236 2277 49513
Less amount due for settlement within 12 months (158) (590) {748) (1.728) (1,231 (2959)
Amount due for settlement after | 2 months 26,940 617 27.557 45,508 1,046 46,554

Dunng the year the Group renewed its main bank facility with Lioyds TSB Bank plc

The pnncipal features of the Group's borrowings are as follows

(1 An uncommitted £1,000.000 bank overdraft facity, repayable on demand

(n} An uncommitted Australian Dollar denominated overdraft facility of AUD 3 000,000 repayable on demand
(m) The Group has two prncipal bank loans

{a) A revoling credit facility of £125,000,000 with Lloyds TSB Bank plc the Group s principal bank, expinng in 2016 This
compnises of a £75,000000 commutted facility, with an addiional £50 000,000 available as requred, subject to credit approval
Loans carry interest equal to LIBOR plus a margin determined by reference to the total bank borrowing of the Group

There were loans drawn totaling £26 870,000 (2011 £45272000) at 3| December 2012
The facility is guaranteed by the Company and certain subsidianes but no secunty over the Group's assets exists

{b) Australian Dollar denominated loans of AUD 358,000 The loans are guaranteed by interlocking guarantees between the
acquired company's entities and fixed and floating charges over its assets

() Bonding facility uttisation of £3,594,000 (2011 £4,725000) drawn aganst a £10,000,000 ancillary facility with Uoyds TSB Bank Plc
The carrying amounts of short term borrowings approximate therr fair values, as the impact of discounting 1s not sigrificant

The carrying amounts of our long term borrowings also approximate fair value

Liquidity risk

The Group has strong cash flow and the funds generated by operating companies are managed on a country basis The Group also
considers its long-term funding requirements as part of the annual business planning cycle

Loan hquidity nsk profile

£000s 012 2011t
<{ year 693 856
I-2 years 594 45783
>2 but <5 years 27.389 79

28,676 46,718

The kquidity nsk profile above shows the expected cashflows in respect of the Group’s loan facilities compnising payments of capital
and interest assuming that the loan balance at year end remains constant untsl expiry of the facilities and foreign exchange rates remain
constant at the rates existing at the year end

58

Report and Accounts 2012




Accounts

17. Obhgations under finance leases

Amounts payable under finance leases

as at 31 December 2012 as_at 31 December 2011

Present Present

Less value of Less value of

Minimum future minimum Minimurn future miniImum

lease interest lease lease Interest lease

£000s payments charges payments payments charges payments
Within one year 670 (80) 550 1378 (147) 1,234
In two to five years 652 (35} 617 141 (%5) 1.046
1,322 {115) 1,207 2519 (242) 2277

For the year ended 3| December 2012, the average effective borrowing rate was 8% Interest rates are fixed at the contract date
All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments

The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by mterocking guarantees between certain Group entities, the lessors' nghts
aver the leased assets and a letter of credit prowided by Lloyds TSB Bank Plc

The carrying amount of abligations under finance leases 15 considered to be a reasonable approxomation of fair value

18, Deferred consideration

As at As at

31 Dec 31 Dec

£000s 2012 2011
Amount due within one year 7,842 10,327
Amount due between one and two years 3543 -
Total deferred consideration payable 11,385 10,327

The amount due within one year as at 31 December 2¢12 ncludes contingent deferred consideration treated as remuneration expense
accrued but not pad totaling £4,157 000 (31 December 2011 £5,697000) See note 32 for detail of the commutment in respect of
contingent deferred consideration treated as remuneration
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19. Provisions

Property

The provision for property costs relates to onerous operating lease rentals and related costs on vacated property and will be utiised

within 6 years

Warranty

This prowision 1s in respect of contractual obfigations and s expected to be utiised within one year

Diapidations

The dilapidations provisian 1s In respect of reinstatement obligations related to leasehold properties and will be utilised within |2 years

£000s Property Warranty Dilapidations Total
As at | January 2012 1,453 2,649 2,485 6587
Additiona!l provision in the year 222 299 70 594
Utilised in year {1,034) (1.514) (527) (3075)
Ansing on acquisition of subsidiary - - 50 50
Exchange difference (42) (15) {27) (84)
At 31 December 2012 599 1419 2,051 4,069
As at As at
31 Dec 31 Dec
£000s 2012 2011
Due as follows
Within one year 2,633 3903
After more than one year 1,436 2,684
4,069 6587

The carrying value of the prowisions disclosed above 1s a reasonable approximation of their fair value
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20 Deferred taxation

Accounts

Goodwill Foreign Provisions

Fixed asset and  exchange and other

uming  intangible on Employment Share based timing
£000s differences assets Investments benefits  payments differences Total
At | January 201 | 584  (12.055) (584) 2,408 71 (L715)  (11.29D)
(Charge)/credit to income for the year (1,297) 2265 56 27 121 569 1.687
(Charge)/credit to income due to change in tax rate (76) 330 - (7 | {62) 176
{Charge)/credit to equity for the year - 220 - - {103) - 117
Owned by subsidianes acquired (54 (2876} - 292 - 203 (2435)
Fair value adjustment to pnor year acquisitions (14) - - 89 - - 75
Exchange differences (26) (5 - 55 3] 55 77
At 31 December 201 | 883y (12,121) (528) 2,800 88 (950) {11594)
(Charge)/credit to income for the year 26 2284 - 147 4| 1,565 4,063
(Charge)/credit to ncome due to change in tax rate {80y 183 - (15) 3 (70) 21
(Charge)credtt to equrty for the year - - - - 95 - 95
Owned by subsidianes acquired {(32) (1.850) - - - - (1.182)
Exchange differences 48 244 - (117 - {4 161
At 3| Decermber 2012 (921)  (10,560) (528) 2815 227 531 (8,436)

The balances at | January 2011, 31 December 201 and 3| December 2012 were disclosed within liabilities

No deferred tax liability 15 recognised on temporary differences of £21,309 000 (2011 £17,137,000) relating to the unremitted
earmings of overseas subsidianes as the group is able to contral the timing of the reversal of these temporary differences and it s
probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future The temporary differences at 3t December 2012 represent only the
unremitted earnings of those overseas subsidianes where remittance to the UK of those earmings may result in a tax fiability, prncipally

as a result of dvidend withholding taxes levied by the overseas tax junsdictions in which they operate
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21. Share capital

as at 31 December 2012 as at 31 December 201 |
Authonsed Authonsed Authorsed Authorised
Number £000s Number £000s
Ordinary shares of 3p each 240,000,000 7,200 240,000,000 7,200
2012 2011
Issued and fully paid Number £000s Number £000s
Ordinary shares of 3p each
At | January 218,138,273 6,544 217,218,591 6516
lssued under share option schemes 193,905 6 136670 4
Issued under the Share Incentive Plan 579,283 |7 523766 16
Issued in respect of the Performance Share Plan 654,808 20 259,246 8
At 31 December 219,566,269 6,587 218,138,273 6,544
As at As at
31 Dec 31 Dec
Number 2012 2011
Ordinary shares held by the ESCP Trust 2,340,216 ' 582,771
Ordinary shares held by the SIP Trust 3602403 3.339807

The ESOP Trust has elected to waive any dividend on the unallocated ordinary shares held

The table below shows options outstanding at 3| December 2012

Pencd exercisable Number Exercise pnce (p)
2006 - 2013 71038 I
2007 - 2014 730 118
2008 - 2015 136,249 P - 147
2011 - 2018 205000 295
2013 - 2020 215,000 195
2014 - 2021 205,000 212

833,057
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22, Other reserves

Accounts

Merger Employee Translauon
£000s reserve trust reserve Total
At | January 201t 21,256 (5,504) 30,229 45,581
Exchange differences - - @Iy 81 H
lssue of new shares - (1,1£5) - (1.115)
Purchase of own shares - (356) - (356)
At 31 December 2011 21,256 (7.375) 29418 43.29%
Exchange differences P - (5,545) (5.545)
Issue of new shares - (1,284) - {1284)
Purchase of own shares - (400) - (400)
At 31 Decemnber 2012 21,256 (9.059) 23,873 36,070
23. Dividends
Year Year

ended ended

3) Dec 31 Cec
£000s 2012 2011
Amounts recognised as distnbutions to equity holders dunng the year
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 201} of 290p (2010 252p) per share 6,325 5,460
Interm dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 of 306p (2011 2 66p) per share 6,682 773

13,007 11233
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 of 334p (2011 290p) per share 7317 6319

The proposed final dwdend for the year ended 3| December 2012 15 subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting and has not been included as a habilty in the financial statements

24. Operating lease arrangements

At 3| Decemnber 2012 the Group's total remaining commitments as lessee under non-cancellable operating leases were as follows

as at 3) December 2012

as at 31 December 20| |

£000s Property Other Property Other
Within one year 10,063 3004 14,178 2929
In two to five years 24,528 3947 26,067 4322
After five years 3,199 6 10,742 -
37,790 6957 47,987 7251
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25. Related party transactions

Related parties, following the definitions within 1AS 24, are the subsidiary companies and members of the Board and their families
Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes have been elminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note
The Group considers the Directors to be the key management personnel There were no transactions within the year in which the

Chrectors had any interest The Remuneration Report contains details of Board emoluments

26 Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec 31 Dec
£000s 2012 2001
Operating profit 42,144 42 684
Adjustments for
Depreciation 8950 8,032
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 10,636 10,839
Contingent consideration treated as remuneration 8593 9,256
Share based payment expense 2,070 2431
Negative goodwill (266) (9067}
Profit / (loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment (e 27
Loss on disposal of business 135 -
Share of profit of associates - (24)
Revaluation of investment i associate - (1,490}
72143 62688
Decrease / {increase} in trade and other recavables 12,491 (39243
{Decrease) / increase in trade and other payables (8.589) 12,289
Adjusted cash generated from operations 76,045 71,053

’

Adjusted cash generated from operations i1s before payment of deferred consideration treated as remuneration

The table below prowdes an analysis of net bank borrowings, compnsing cash and cash equivalents, interest beanng loans and finance

leases, durng the year ended 3| December 2002

At 31 Dec Acquisiion Foreign At 31 Dec
£000s 2001 Cash flow debt Exchange 2012
Cash and cash equivalents 24,458 (5.259) - (395) 14804
Bank loans (45,705) 17,409 - 1,198 (27 098)
Finance lease creditor (2276) 1,350 (334) 53 (1.207)
(23.523) 9,500 (334) 856 {13501)
The cash balance at 31 December 2012 includes £3,566,000 (2011 £3,304,000) that 1s restncted in its use
27, Major non-cash transactions
Major non cash transactions dunng the year are as follows
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec 3 Dec
£000s 012 2011
Depreciation 8950 8032
Amortsation of acquired intangibles 10,636 10,839
Share based payment expense 2,070 2431
Negative goodwill (268) (9067}
Share of profit of associates - (24
Revaluation of investment in associate — (1,490}
21,390 10,721
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23. Acquisitions
On 18 July 2012, RPS acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital of Marwdis Roberts Pty Ltd (MR}, an Australlan consultancy firm

The Group has allocated provisional fair values to the net assets of MR, Detalls of the carrying values of the acquired net assets, the
provisional far values assigned to them by the Group and the fair value of consideration are as follows

£000s Manidis Roberts
Intangble assets

Order book 839

Customer refationships 2,993
Property, plant and equipment 862
Cash 2155
Other assets 3,544
Other liabilties (3.377)
Net assets acquired 7016
Inisal cash consideration 11,895
Fair value of deferred cash consideration 7478
Tota! consideration 19,373
Goodwill 12,357

Goodwill ansing of £12,357 000 represents the value of the accumulated workforce and synergies with RPS associated with this
acquistion There 1s no tax deductible goodwill ansing

The total farr value of recevables acquired was £3,418000 The gross contractual recewvables acquired were £3,469,000 and £51,000
was estimated to be irrecoverable

The vendors of the acquired companies have entered into warranty arrangements with the Group The tota! undiscounted cash flow
that could be recewvable by the Group s between £nil and £3,418,000 The Group does not expect that these warranties will become
receivable and therefore has not recognised an indemnification asset on acquisrtion

The contnbution of MR to the Group s results for the year was £6,027 000 revenue and £37,000 operating profit

The Group incurred acquisition costs of £449 000 which have been expensed through the consolidated income statement and sncluded
within ' amortisation of acquired intangibles and transaction related expenses’

The proforma Group revenue and operating profit assuring the acquisition had been completed on the first day of the year would
have been £564,716,000 and £43,188,000 respectively

A recanclhation of the goodwall movement in 2012 in respect of the acquisitions n 201 | and 2012 is given in the table below

£000s EHI T™T MR

Goodwill at | January 2012 1,509 1,669 -
Addttions through acquisition - - 12,357
Adjustments te opening bafance sheet 232 - -
Foreign exchange gains and losses {69) (53) (#14)
Goodwill at 31 Decernper 20i2 1,672 616 11,943

There were no accumulated impairment losses at the beginning or the end of the penad

Negative goodwill of £266,000 was recogrised in 2012 refating to an opening balance sheet adjustment in ASA This was not
recognised m 201 | on the basis of materiality
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29. Financial Risk Management

(a) Capital management

The capital of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings and faclities disclosed in note |6, cash and cash equivalents
and equity attnbutable to equity holders of the parent compnsing 1ssued caprtal, reserves and retained earmings as disclosed in the
consohdated balance sheet and notes 21 and 22 The Group manages its caprtal to support its strategy, and there were no changes
in approach to caprtat management dunng the year

The borrowings are managed centrally and funds are onward lent to operating subsidianes as required The main borrowing facility of
the Group 1s a £75 millien multr currency revolving credit faciity that provides a high degree of flexsbility An additional £50 million s
avallable as required subject to credit approval There are two financial covenants related to this facility interest cover must be no less
than 400% and the ratio of group net borrowings to EBITDA should be no greater than 250% These covenants are tested regularly
and were not breached dunng the year and have not been since

The Group's businesses provide a good levet of cash generauon which helps fund future grawth The Group seeks to minimise
borrowings by utilising cash generated by operations that 1s surplus to the immediate operating needs of the business and an objective
18 to maintain a minimum level of cash at bank.

(b) Financial instruments

The Group's financial assets compnse cash and trade and other recevables The Group's financial habities compnse bank loans,
deferred consideration and trade and other payables It 1s, and has been throughout the period under review, the Group's policy that
ne trading in financial instruments shali be undertaken

Fair values

The farr value of the financial assets and habilities of the Group are considered to be matenally equivalent to their book value The
ciassification of finanaal instruments 1s shown In the table below

As at As at

31 Dec 3! Dec

£000s 2012 2011
Cash 14,804 25,989
Trade recevables 148,055 161,788
Financial assets 162,859 |87,777
Borrowings 28,305 49513
Deferred consideration 11,385 10327
Trade and other payables 73,570 82,484
Financial liabilities | 13,260 142,324

The pnor year comparatives have been restated to exclude deferred income, creditors for tax and social secunty, prepayments and
cther recevables and to include prowvisions

Interest rate and currency nisk are the most significant aspects for the Group In the area of financial instruments It 1s exposed to a
lesser extent to liquidity nsk that is reviewed in note 16 The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these nsks and
they are summansed below

(<) Interest rate risk

The Group draws down term loans, typically between one and three months, against its revolving credit facility m US Dollars, GB
Pounds, Australian Dollars and Canadian Dollars at fixed rates of interest for the term of the foan The Group has not entered any
<ontracts to fix interest rates beyond the penod of the term loans but will consider doing so If borrowings becomes significantly larger
and longer term The Group's overdraft bears interest at floating rates Surplus funds are piaced on short-term deposit or held within
instant access deposit accounts earning floating rate interest
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(c) Interest rate risk continued

Interest rate nsk and profile of financial habilives
The interest rate risk profile of the Group's financial liabilities at 31 December was as follows

Floating rate Fixed rate Non interest bearing Total
£000s 2012 2011 2012 2011 - 2012 2011 2612 2011
Sterling - - 5,239 4,778 27907 27,902 33,146 32,680
Euro - - - - 9,009 11,297 9009 11,297
Australian Dollar - 3902 8,767 5,951 14,379 16,724 23,146 26,577
Canadian Dollar - - 351 514 12,135 13,873 12,4%6 14,387
US Dollar - - 25,323 44,695 9,856 12,327 35,179 57022
Other - - - - 284 361 284 351
At 31 December — 3902 39,690 55,938 73,570 82,484 113,260 142,324

The matunty profite of financial habilties at 31 December was as follows

Floating rate Frxed rate Non interest beanng Tatal

£000s 2012 2001 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Within one year - 3,902 8590 9383 70389 78,135 78379 91,420
In one to two years - - 4,201 45,948 985 1,956 5,186 47,904
in two to five years - - 26,899 607 2,196 2,393 29,095 3.000
- 3902 39690 55,938 73,570 82 484 113,260 142,324

The weighted average interest rate and term for interest beanng finanaial liabilities 1s shown below

Fixed and floating rate Fixed rate

financial labities financial habilties

Woeghted average penog for

Woeighted average interest rate % which rate 1s fixed — months

2012 2011 2012 2011

Sterling 26 24 ] 2
Australian Dollar 48 71 13 9
Canadian Dollar 10 10 8 8
US Dollar I8 13 ! 2
26 23 4 3
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29, Financial Risk Management continued

Cash balances at year end

As at As at

31 Dec 31 Dec

£000s 2012 2011
Steriing 2,356 3,042
Eure 226 1,249
US Dollar 4,572 6,300
Australian Dollar 2210 3590
Canadian Doliar 3473 8,864
Mongolian Tugnk 878 1,567
Cther 1,089 977
At 3t December 14 804 25,989

Cash balances are held in either non-interast beanng current accounts or instant access deposit accounts earning floating rate nterest

There are no interest bearing trade and other recewvables

g
Borrowing facilities
The Group's undrawn borrowing facliies comprise revolving credit facilities that expire in 2016 where interest costs are fixed at the
time drawings are made During 2012, the Group had an uncommitted overdraft facility, carrying floating rate interest
The Group has the following undrawn committed borrowing facilities avalable in respect of which all conditions precedent had
been met
As at As at

3! Dec 34 Dec
£000s 2012 2011
Expinng in more than one year but not more than 2 years - 79,728
Expinng in more than 2 years but not more than 5 years 48,130 -
Interest rate sensitivity
A | 0% decrease In interest rates would increase Group profit before tax by £547,000 A | 0% increase in interest rates would
decrease Group profit before tax by £547,000
(d) Foreign currency risk
The Group, which 1s based in the UK and reports in sterling has significant investments in overseas operations in the Netherfands
Irelang JSA, Camada and Australia that have functional currencies other than sterting As a result the Group's balance sheet and
Income statement can be affected by movement in the exchange rate between stering and the functional currencies of overseas
operations The most important exchange rates as far as the Group is concerned 1s the GB Pound to Australian Dollar rate
The farr value of the forward foreign exchange contracts held at year end was not matenal
The Group does not hedge balance sheet and income statement translation exposures
A number of the Group's operations transact In currencies other than therr functional currency This creates a foreign currency exposure
that 1s monitored and hedged centrally
Foreign currency sensitivity
Since the Group hedges the majonty its transactional foreign currency exposures, the sensitivity of the results te transactional foreign
currency nsk 15 not material
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(e) Credit Risk

It 1s Group policy, impltemented locally, to assess the credit risk of new customers before entenng contracts The Group does not
enter into cornplex dervatives to manage credit nsk. The Group's exposure to credit nsk 1s imited to the carrying amount of financial
assets recogrised at the balance sheet date The directors consider the Group's financial assets that are not impaired to be of good
credit quality ncluding those that are past due See note |4 for further detall on recewvables that are past due The group’s financial
assets are not secured by collateral advanced by counterparties In respect of trade anc other recewvables, the group 1s not exposed
1o any significant credit nsk exposure to any smgle counterparty or any group of counterparties with smilar charactenstics The credit
risk for cash and cash equivalents 1s considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external
credit ratings

30. Share-based payments

Share scheme costs

Year ended Year ended
31 Bec 31 Dec
£000s 2012 2011
Share Incentive Plan ("StP™) 1,097 1,126
Performance Share Plan (‘PSP") 663 866
Share Opuon Plan 94 118
Bonus Plan 216 321
2070 2,431
The following tables set cut details of matenal share schemes activity
PSP
Number Number
outstanding outstanding Vesting
Year of grant 31 Dec 201! New grants Releases Lapses 31 Dec 2012 conditions
2006 2,148 - - - 2,148 2 or 3 years
2007 5129 - (786) - 4343 I, 2 or 3 years
2009 1,026,65% - (650,310} (66522) 309827 3 years
2010 31124 - - (22,137) 8,987 3 years
2011 450,772 - (3.712) (41287) 405,773 3 years
2012 - 426,403 - (7.127) 419276
1,515832 426,403 {654,808) {137.073) 1,150,354
Number Number
outstanding outstanding Vesting
Year of grant 31 Oec 2010 New grants Releases Lapses 31 Dec 201t conditions
2006 4296 - {2,148) - 2,148 2 or 3 years
2007 54,098 - (48.969) - 3,129 I, 2 or 3 years
2008 58796 - (56.285) (2.511) - 3 years
2009 1,288,603 - (148,149) (113,795) 1,026,659 3 years
2010 38,453 - - (7329) 31,124 3 years
2011 - 485,118 (3695 (30,651) 450,772 3 years
1,444,246 485,118 (259 246) (154,286) 1515,832
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30. Share-based payments continued

SIP
Number Number
outstanding outstanding Vesting
Year of grant 3t Dec 2011 New grants Releases Forferts 31 Dec 2012 condrtions
2009 460,278 - (442,542) {17,736) - 3 years
2010 543,057 - (19.645) 3H127) 492,285 3 years
2011 541,159 - (18,111} (44,958) 478,090 3 years
2012 - 541,850 (12,340) (18,247) 510,663 3 years
[.544,494 541,850 (493,238) (112.068) 1,481,038
Number Number
outstanding outstanding Vesting
Year of grant 31 Dec 2010 New grants Releases Forferts 31 Dec 200 ¢ condrtions
2008 489,162 - (462,262) (26,900) - 3 years
2009 527491 - (33,069) (34 144) 460,278 3 years
2010 608,652 - (23517) (36,078) 543,057 3 years
2011 - 566,108 (10,880) (14,069) 541,159 3 years
1,625,305 566,108 (535,728) (11,395 {544,494
pPsp

For the purpases of calculating the fair value of conditional shares awarded under the PSP the far value was calculated as the market
value of the shares at the date of grant adjusted to reflect that participants are not entitled to recenve dwidends over the performance
perod

PSP awards
Fair value at measurement date 13001p - 28875p
Weighted fair value 19683p
Holding penod 3 years
Expected dividend yield 099% - 244%

SIP
For the purposes of calculating the fair value of condiional shares awarded under the SIP, the fair value was calculated as the market
value of the shares at the date of grant as participants are entitled to receve dividends over the three year holding penod

SIP awards
Fair value at measurement date 16020p - 25571p
Weghted farr value 210 14p
Holding penod 3 years

The Group assumed a 5% annual lapse rated as at the date of grant for the above schemes and all non-market based performance
condrtions would be satisfied in full (see accounting policy 2(e)n}
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31. Events after the balance sheet date

In January 2013, RPS completed the acquisiion of the entire 1ssued share capital of Petroleumn Institute for Continuing Education
Inc (' PEICE } a Canadian based business providing geoscience and engineening traning to the il and gas industry, for a maximum
consideration of C$! | 7 million (equivalent to approxamately £7 4 million) all payable in cash

Consideration paid at completion was C$57m (£3 6m) Subject to further operational conditions being met two further sums of
C3%30m (£1 9m) will be paid on the first and second anniversanes of the transaction

Due to the proximity of the acquisiton date to the date of approval of the Report and Accounts, 1t 1s impracticable to provide
further information

32. Commitments and contingencies

The Group completed a number of acquistions between Ist January 2010 and 31 December 201 | where deferred consideration
payments to vendors are contingent on the vendors’ continued employment with the Group and so are recognised as employment
costs over the deferred consideration penod The Group consider it probable that the remaining deferred consideration payments wall
be settled

The total cash commitments in respect of contingent deferred consideration treated as remuneration that the Group expects to settle
and the estimated remuneration charge for each financial year assuming exchange rates remain constant are disclosed in the table below

Cash Rernuneration
£000s commitment charge
2013 7,564 5,833
2014 3,592 1,165

L 156 6998

The cash commitment due n 2013 includes cantingent deferred consideration expense accrued, but not paid, totatling £4 157000 as
referred to in note |8
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As at As at
31 Dec 31 Dec
£C00s MNotes 2012 2011
Fixed assets
Intangibie assets . 3 646 712
Tangible assets 4 2,554 2,437
Investments 5 246,154 234,255
249,354 237,408
Current assets
Debtors
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 33759 44 602
Other debtors 1816 544
Prepaymenits and accrued income 1,529 1,152
37.104 46 298
Cash at bank and in hand - 371
37,104 46,669
Current liabilities
Creditors amounts fallng due within ane year
Borrowings 2,556 -
Trade creditors 1,139 363
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings 19,005 13.247
Other creditors 476 377
Aceruals and deferred income 3,640 1714
26816 |5 701
Net current assets 10288 30,968
Total assets less current liabilties 259,642 268,376
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year 6 26,870 45,272
Provision for liabilities 7 205 154
Net assets 232,567 222,950
Capital and reserves
Called up share caprtal 2,10 6,587 6,544
Share premium account 10 106,198 103,717
Profit and loss reserve I1C 107,585 98,776
Merger reserve 10 21,256 21,256
Revaluation reserve 10 - 3
Employee trust shares 10 (3,05%) (7.375)
Total shareholders' equity 232,567 222,950

These financial statements were approved and authensed for issue by the Board on 28 February 2013

The notes on pages 73 to 79 form part of these financial statemenits
Cr Alan Hearme, Director

Gary Young, Director

On behalf of the Board of RPS Group Plc
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements

I. Accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention as modified by the revaluation of certain assets and
are in accordance with applicable UK accounting standards The following pnncipal accounting policies have been applied

Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of businesses, representing any excess of the far value of the consideration given over the far value
of the identifiable assets and liabilties acquired, is capitalised Purchased goodwill 1s written off on a straight ine basis over #s useful
economic ife of up to 20 years

Valuatron of investments
Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost, less any provision for impairment in value

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment

Depreciation 1s provided to write off the cost, less estimated residual values, of all tangible fixed assets excluding freehold land, over
their expected useful lives as follows

Freehold bulldings 50 years
Alterations to leasehold premses Life of lease
Motor vehicles 4 years
Fixtures, fittings, T and equipment 3to 8 years

Revaluation of properties

The Company has taken advantage of the transitional arrangements in FRS |5 “Tangible Fixed Assets” and retained the bock values of
certan freehold properties that were revalued prior to implementation of that standard Where an asset that was previously revalued 1s
disposed of its book value is etiminated and an appropriate transfer made from the revaluation reserve to the profit and loss reserve

Leased assets and assets held under hire purchase controcts

Where assets are financed by hire purchase or leasing agreements that gve rghts approximating to ownership {finance leases), the
assets are treated as If they had been purchased outnght The amount capitalised 1s the present vatue of the mirimum lease payments
payable during the lease term The corresponding leasng commitments are shown as amounts payable to the lessor Depreciation on
the relevant assets is charged to the profit and loss account

Lease payments are split between capital and interest using the actuanal method and the interest element 15 charged to the profit and
loss account

All other leases are treated as operating leases Their annual rentals are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight line basis
aver the lease term

Forergn currency translation
Foreign currency transactions are translated at the rates ruling when they occurred Foreign currency monetary assets and habilities are
translated at the rates ruling at the balance sheet date

Pension costs
Contnbutions to the Company's defined contnbution pension schemes are charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which
they become payable

Share based employee remuneration

The Company has applied FRS 20 'Share-based payment” to all share options and conditional share awards which were granted to
employees and had not vested at | January 2005 A charge is recognised on the same basis as that recognised for the Group under
IFRS 2 Where the Company will be 1ssuing shares to satisfy share awards made by 115 subsidianies, the Company makes a change to it
subsidiares equal to the far value of the share-based payment incurred
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Taxation
Current tax, ncluding UK corporation tax, 1s provided at amounts expected 1o be paid {or recovered) using the tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s recognised in respect of tming differences that have onginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where
transactions or events that result in an oblgation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax In the future have occurred
at the batance sheet date Timing differences are differences between the Company’s taxable profits and its results as stated in the
financial statements that anse from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments In penods different from those in which they
are recognised in the financial statements

A net deferred 1ax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all avallable evidence, it can

be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underying timing
differences can be deducted

Deferred tax 15 not recognised when fixed assets are sold and it 1s more likely than not that the taxabls gain will be rolled over being
charged to tax only f and when the replacement assets are sold

Deferred tax 15 measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the penods in which the tming dfferences are
expected to reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date Deferred
tax 1s measured on a non-discounted basis

Employee Share Ownerstup Plan (ESOP)
In accordance with UITF 32, the assets, Income and expenditure of the ESOP Trust are incorporated into the Company Financial
Statements

Financial instruments
Disclosures on financial iInstruments have not been included in the Company's financial statements as its consolidated financial statements
include appropnate disclosures

Loans and recewvables
Loans and receivables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market

Trade debtors and other recevables are financial assets that are recognised at far value on inception and are subsequently carmed at
amortised cost They are subject to impairment tests whenever events or changes in crcumstances indicate that their cammying value
may not be recoverable imparment losses are taken to the profit and loss account as incurred

Amounts held at emortised cost
Trade creditors and other payables including bank loans are financial habilities that are recognised at far value on inception and are
subsequently camed at amortised cost

2. Profit attributable to shareholders
No profit and loss account 1s disclosed by the Parent Company as allowed by Section 408 of the Comparies Act 2006

Year Year

ended ended

31 Dec 31 Dec

£000s 2012 201t
Profit for the year attnbutable to the shareholders of the Parent Company,

dealt with in the accounts of the Parent Company 20714 14,377

N

The remuneraton of the auditors for the statutory audit of the Company was £45,000 (2011 £33,000)
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3. Intangible Assets

Accounts

£000s Goodwill
Cost
At | January 2012 and at 31 December 2012 2,134
Amortisation
At | January 2012 1,422
Charge for the year 66
At 3| December 2012 | 488
Net book value at 3|1 December 2012 646
Net book value at 31 December 201 | 712
4. Tangible Assets
Fixtures,

Freehold Alterations fittings,

land and to teasehold IT and
£000s buildings premises equipmenit Total
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2012 432 734 5,439 6605
Additions - 291 851 1,142
Disposals (432} (5) (262) (699)
Transfers - - 19 19
At 3] December 2012 - 1,020 6,047 7067
Depreciation
At | January 2012 |85 7% 3904 4,168
Prowided for the year 6 182 596 784
Disposals (191) (5) (262) (458)
Transfers - - 19 19
At 31 December 2012 - 256 4,257 4513
Net book value at 31 December 2012 - 764 1,790 2,554
Net book value at 31 December 201 | 247 655 1,535 2437
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5. investments

£000s 2012 2011
Subsidiary undertakings

Cost

At | January 235.097 235,097
Additions 11,895 -
At 31 December 246,992 235,097
Provisions

At | January and 31 December 838 838
Net book vaiue at 31 December 246,154 234,259

Dunng 2012 RPS Group Plc invested a further £11,895,000 in RPS Consultants Pty Ltd to fund the acquisiion of Manidis Roberts Pty

Ltd See note 28 to the Consoldated Financial Statements

Subsidiary undertakings

The majonty of our trading subsidianies provide consulting services, although we also provide training and laboratory testing

The following were the principal operating subsidianes dunng the year Shares are held dwectly by RPS Group Plc except where

marked by an astensk where they are held by a subsidiary undertaking

Country of

registration and operation

Proportion of

ordinary share caprtal held

The Environmental Consultancy Limited

RPS Environmental Management Limited (formerty RPS Consultants (UK) Limited)

RPS Energy Limited

RPS Health in Business Lirnited
Nautilus Limited

RPS Energy Consultants Limited
RPS Ireland Limited

RPS bv

RPS Adwies-en ingenieursbureau bv
RPS Analyse by

RPS Detachering bv

RPS Group Limited

RPS Engineering Services Limited
RPS Consulting Engineers Limited
RPS Consultants Pty Lirnited

RPS Environment Pty Limited
MetOcean Engingers Pty Limited
RPS Australia East Pty Limited
Agquaterra Consufting Pty Limited
Manidis Roberts Pty Ltd

Cambnan Consultants Amenca inc
RPS JD Consulting Inc

Nautilus World Limited

Evans Hamilton Inc

Espey Consultants Inc

Applied Saence Associates Inc
RPS Energy Canada Limited
Geoprojects Canada Limited

Boyd Exploration Consultants Limited

England
England
England
England
England
England
Northem irefand
MNetheriands
Netherlands
Netheriands
Netherlands
freland
Ireland
Ireland
Australia
Australia
Austraha
Austraha
Australia
Australia
USA

USA

USA

USA

USA

USA
Canada
Canada
Canada

100%

100%

100%

100% *
100% *
100% *
100%*
100%

100% *
100%*
100% *
100% *
100% *
100%*
100% *
100% *
100%*
100% *
100% *
100%% *
100% *
100% *
100% *
100% *
1009 *
100% *
10076 *
100% *
100% *
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6. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Accounts

31 Dec 31 Dec
£000s 2012 2011
Bank loans 26,870 45,272
Due as follows
After one year and within two years - 45,272
After two years and within five years 26870 -
26,870 45,272
7. Provision for liabilities
£000s Dilapidations Total
As at | January 2012 154 154
Additional provisien in the year - 71
Utilised in the year (20) (20)
As at 31 December 2012 134 205
This prowision 15 expected to be utilised as follows
As at As at
31 Dec 31 Dec
£000s 2012 2011
Within one year 85 1Co
After more than one year 120 54
205 154

The prowision booked dunng the year relates 1o an onerous operating lease and related costs on vacated property and will be utihsed

within 3 years

8, Deferred taxation

The movement on deferred taxation in the year was as follows

As at As at
31 Dec 31 Dec
£000s 2012 2011
Net asset at beginning of year 267 460
Credit / (charge) to mcome for the year 14 (193}
Net asset at year end 281 267
The deferred taxation balances compnse
As at As at
31 Dec 31 Dec
£000s 2012 2044
Short term trming differences 165 136
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances 116 131
Deferred tax asset 281 267
Deferred tax 15 ncluded within other debtors in the balance sheet
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9. Share capital

Authorised Allotted and fully paid
Value Value
Number £0C0s Number £000s

Crdinary shares of 3p each
At | January 2012 240,000,000 7,200 218,138,213 6544
At 31 December 2012 240,000 000 7,200 219,566,269 6,587

Full details of the share capital of the Company are disclosed in Note 21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

Employee
Share Share  Merger Revaluation trust  Profit and

£000s capital premium  reserve reserve shares loss reserve Total
At | January 2011 6516 101,941 21,256 32 (558064 93710 217531

Issue of new shares 28 | 776 - - (115 (509) 180
Purchase of own shares - - - - (359) - (356)
Share-based payment expense - - - - - 2,431 2431

Retamned profit for the year - - - - - 14377 14,377

Dividend paid - - - - - (11,233)  {11233)
At 3| December 201 | 6544 103,717 21,256 32 (7375 98776 222950
Issue of new shares 43 2,481 - - (1,284  (1,000) 240
Purchase of own shares - - - - (400 - (400)
Share-based payment expense - - - - - 2,070 2070
Retained profit for the year - - - - - 20714 20714
Transfer - - - (32) - 32 -
Dividend pad - — - — - 13007y (13,007)
At 31 December 2012 6587 106,198 21,256 - (9,059) 107585 232,567
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Il Dividends

Fult details of dividends paid by the Company are disclosed in Note 23 of the Consalidated Financial Statements

I2. Commitments under operating leases

The Company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating teases as set out below

Accounts

Land and bulldings Other
31 Dec 31 Dec I Dec 37 Dec
£000s 2012 2011 2012 2014
Operating leases which expire
Within one year - 127 - i7
In two to five years 1 002 2450 107 208
After five years - 1,722 - -
1,002 4,299 107 225
I3. Directors’ interests in transactions
There were no transacticns dunng the year in which the Directors had any interest
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Five Year Summary

£000s 2012 2041 2010 2009 2008

Revenue 555863 528710 461 830 443909 470,465
Fee income 478,835 452,729 393262 374351 392096
PBTA 60,099 50812 47993 52472 57512
Net bank debt (13.501) (23,523) (31537) {32,763) (28.555)
Net assets 373814 364,450 344993 313468 287,607
Adjusted cash generated from operating activities 76,045 71,053 57874 70,583 67,386
Average number aof employees 4,507 4686 4422 4254 4,438
Dwvidend per share 640p 55ép 483p 420p 366p
Adjusted basic EPS 19 48p |6 68p 1579p 1708p 1892p
Adjusted dituted EPS 19 36p 16 560 1569p 16 87p 18 660

The Five Year Summary does not form part of the audited financial statements

80

Report and Accounts 2012




Corporate & Socia
PONSIBILITY

RPS has supported TREE

AID for over 7 years with
chariable contrbutions for
some of Africa’s poorest rural
communities to succeed in the
fight against poverty and the
effects of climate change

- o




RPS conducts business in a responsible, safe and sustainable manner, through effective

interaction with our clients and suppliers, the wider community and the environment

Qur people TREEAID

Only by paying full regard to RPS supports TREE AID through donations to
the welfare and development some of Africa’s poorest regions and 15 its leading
of ait our staff, can we corporate sponsor

expect to reach and maintain Our contributions to TREE AID 1n 2012 and

the level of service that we
believe 15 essential to our
continued success

2013, have supported projects to the value of
£2m, helping communities in Africa become more
independent RPS is proud of its contuinued
support of people and the environment in the

Our clients fight against poverty

We conduct business to The aim of TREE AID's Bongo River Trees project,
the highest standards Cur which was launched on 24 January 2012, is to break
continued reputation and the cycle of environmental decline and poverty in
integrity 15 essential for us to one of the poorest traditional communities

present to regulatory bodies in Africa

and government agencies on

A T , tion,
behalf of our chents ccording to TREE AID, progressive deforestaticn

soil erosion, soil fertility dechne and the increased
seasonal flooding and landscape aridity of recent
Our shareholders years can be combated very successfully at
community level with the right education, community
ownership, community volunteers (TREE AID has
over 50,000) and the strategic deployment of trees,
shrubs and vetiver grasses Key to the strategy 15

the establishment of protected tree corridors and
Qur am is to provide agroforestry zones along the Nabakulga Akulpielga
shareholders with a long and Akonisi river corndors north of the Vea Dam
term return on investment
that rewards therr financial
comamitment

The Group conducts its
operations in accordance
with the principles of good
corporate governance

RPS has not only pledged the budgeted funding for
the Bongo River Trees project but 1s providing advice
and support on erosion risk mapping, land cover

and land use mapping using remote sensing and
iodiversity baseline mapping and monitoring
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